
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
HARROW PARTNERSHIP BOARD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

 
TUESDAY 26 MAY 2009 AT 4.30 PM 

 
PREMIER HOUSE BANQUETING CENTRE, 1 CANNING ROAD, WEALDSTONE, 
HA3 7TS 

 
 
AGENDA 

 
 
Members: 

 
Councillor David Ashton 
(Chairman) 

Leader; Strategy, Partnership 
and Finance Portfolio Holder 

Harrow Council 
 
Councillor Susan Hall Deputy Leader, Environment and 

Community Safety Portfolio 
Holder 

Harrow Council 

Councillor Paul Osborn Performance, Communication 
and Corporate Services Portfolio 
Holder 

Harrow Council 

Councillor Bill Stephenson Leader of the Labour Group Harrow Council 
Councillor Phillip O'Dell Deputy Leader of the Labour 

Group 
Harrow Council 

Dr Gillian Schiller  
(Vice-Chairman) 

Chairman Harrow Primary Care Trust 

Vacant Representative Metropolitan Police Authority 
Howard Bluston Representative North West London Chamber of 

Commerce 
Malcolm Parr Representative Harrow in Business 
Neil Tornes Representative Large Employers' Network 
Dr Mohamed Aden Representative Voluntary and Community Sector 
Julie Browne Representative Voluntary and Community Sector 
Mike Coker Representative Voluntary and Community Sector 
Kris Fryer Representative Voluntary and Community Sector 
Yvonne Lee Representative Voluntary and Community Sector 
Professor Simon Jarvis Representative University of Westminster 
Jacqui Mace Representative Further Education Sector 
Ann Groves Chairman Older People's Reference Group 
Abs Malik Representative Learning and Skills Council 
Daniel Elkeles Representative North West London Hospitals 

Trust 
John Vaughan Representative Central and North West London 

Mental Health Trust 
Vacant Chairman Harrow Council for Racial 

Equality 
Vacant Representative Harrow Youth Parliament 
Vacant Representative Harrow Youth Parliament 
Paul Clark Corporate Director, Children's 

Services 
Children and Young People 
Partnership 

John Edwards Divisional Director, 
Environmental Services 

Sustainable Development and 
Enterprise Management Group 

 



 
 
Andrew Howe Director of Public Health, Harrow 

PCT 
Adult and Social Care 
Management Group 

Javed Khan Director of Community and 
Cultural Services 

Community Cohesion 
Management Group 

Anne Whitehead Co-chair, Community Cohesion 
Management Group 

Community Cohesion 
Management Group 

Richard Walton Borough Commander, Harrow 
Police 

Safer Harrow Management 
Group 

Jaswant Lall Representative Job Centre Plus 
 

 
  Guests: 
 
Michael Lockwood Chief Executive Harrow Council 
Sarah Crowther Chief Executive Harrow Primary Care Trust 
Julia Smith Chief Executive Harrow Association of Voluntary 

Service 
Allen Pluck Chief Executive Harrow in Business 
Susan Phillips Locality Manager (West London) Government Office for London 
Annette Furley CAA Lead Audit Commission 

 
 
Officers: 

 
Mike Howes Service Manager, Policy and 

Partnership Service 
Harrow Council 

Trina Taylor Senior Policy Officer, Policy and 
Partnership Service 

Harrow Council 

 

 
 

Contact:  Claire Vincent, Senior Professional - Democratic Services 
Tel:  020 8424 1637    E-mail:  claire.vincent@harrow.gov.uk 

 



 
 
 
  AGENDA - PUBLIC   

 
1. Attendance by Substitute Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any Substitute Members, in 

accordance with paragraph 4.12 of the Harrow Partnership Governance 
Handbook. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest:    
 (if any). 

 
3. Minutes:  (Pages 1 - 8) Enc. 
 That the minutes of the Board Meeting held on 19 March 2009, having been 

circulated, be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

4. Harrow Healthy Living Centre:  (Pages 9 - 12) Enc. 
 Presentation by Mr Clive Myers, Director of Harrow Healthy Living Centre. 

 
5. North West London Collaborative Commissioning Intentions 2009-2014:  

(Pages 13 - 28) 
Enc. 

 Report of Harrow Primary Care Trust. 
 
[Note:  For reasons of economy, only the Executive Summary of the above 
report is attached.  Members wishing to view the whole report can do so by 
accessing the agenda for this meeting on the Harrow Council website 
(www.harrow.gov.uk), where there is a link to the full document.  If you 
require further information, please contact Claire Vincent, Democratic 
Services on 020 8424 1637]. 
 

6. Harrow Strategic Partnership Annual Report 2008/09:  (Pages 29 - 56) Enc. 
 Report of the Assistant Chief Executive, Harrow Council. 

 
7. Report of Harrow Chief Executives:  (Pages 57 - 58) Enc. 
 Report of the Assistant Chief Executive, Harrow Council. 

 
 8. Any Other Urgent Business:   

 
9. Date of Next Meeting:    
 The next Board Meeting (Summit) is scheduled for Tuesday 27 October 2009.

 
  AGENDA - PRIVATE - NIL   

 
 
 

 
IT IS EXPECTED THAT ALL OF THE ABOVE LISTED ITEMS WILL BE  

CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC SESSION. 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

HARROW PARTNERSHIP BOARD

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 19 March 2009

(1) Present: 

Harrow Strategic Partnership Board Members: 

Councillor David Ashton 
(Chairman) 

Leader; Strategy, Partnership 
and Finance Portfolio Holder 

Harrow Council 

Councillor Susan Hall Deputy Leader, Environment 
and Community Safety 
Portfolio Holder 

Harrow Council 

Councillor Paul Osborn Performance, Communication 
and Corporate Services 
Portfolio Holder 

Harrow Council 

Councillor Bill Stephenson Leader of the Labour Group Harrow Council 
Councillor Phillip O'Dell Deputy Leader of the Labour 

Group 
Harrow Council 

Dr Gillian Schiller Chairman Harrow Primary Care Trust 
Howard Bluston Representative North West London Chamber of 

Commerce 
Malcolm Parr Representative Harrow in Business 
Mike Coker Representative Voluntary and Community Sector
Yvonne Lee Representative Voluntary and Community Sector
Jacqui Mace Representative Further Education Sector 
Ann Groves Chairman Older People's Reference Group 
John Vaughan Representative Central and North West London 

Mental Health Trust 
Paul Clark Corporate Director, Children's 

Services 
Children and Young People 
Partnership 

John Edwards Divisional Director, 
Environmental Services 

Sustainable Development and 
Enterprise Management Group 

Javed Khan Director of Community and 
Cultural Services 

Community Cohesion 
Management Group 

Richard Walton Borough Commander, Harrow 
Police

Safer Harrow Management 
Group 

(2) Also Present: 

Michael Lockwood Chief Executive Harrow Council 
Andrew Bland Director of Commissioning Harrow Primary Care Trust 
Allen Pluck Chief Executive Harrow in Business 
Sara Brattan Locality Manager (West 

London) 
Government Office for London 

Annette Furley CAA Lead Audit Commission 
Nick O'Reilly Harrow Borough Commander London Fire Brigade 

Agenda Item 3
Pages 1 to 8

1



- 2 - 

(3) The following Harrow Council Officers attended: 

Mark Gillett Divisional Director, 
Commissioning and 
Partnerships, Children's and 
Adults 

Harrow Council 

Andrew Hadfield Head of Communications Harrow Council 
Mike Howes Service Manager, Policy and 

Partnership Service 
Harrow Council 

Trina Taylor Senior Policy Officer, Policy 
and Partnership Service 

Harrow Council 

Apologies were received from: 

Neil Tornes (Representative, Large Employers' Network), Professor Simon Jarvis (Representative, 
University of Westminster), Abs Malik (Representative, Learning and Skills Council), Julia Smith 
(Chairman, Harrow Association of Voluntary Service), Anne Whitehead (Co-chair, Community 
Cohesion Management Group) and Jasvant Lall who will be attending future meetings in place of  
Janet Matthews (Representative, Job Centre Plus). 

ACTION

1. Attendance by Substitute Members/Apologies for Absence:    

AGREED:  To (1) note the attendance of Andrew Bland, Director of 
Commissioning at Harrow Primary Care Trust (PCT), as substitute member 
for Sarah Crowther, Chief Executive of the PCT; and  

(2) note the apologies received (as set out above). 

2. Declarations of Interest:    

AGREED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made by 
Partnership Board members in relation to the business to be transacted at 
this meeting. 

3. Appointment of Deputy Chair:    

AGREED:  That Dr Gillian Schiller be appointed Deputy Chair until the end 
of the 2009/10 Municipal Year. 

4. Minutes:    

AGREED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 October 2008 of 
the Harrow Strategic Partnership Board, being the predecessor body to 
this, be taken as read and signed as a correct record, subject to the 
amendment of the attendance list to show that Councillor Phillip O’Dell was 
present.  

5. Matters Arising:    

(i) Minute 170 – Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA)
It was noted that it had previously been agreed that Annette Furley, 
CAA Lead from the Audit Commission, would give a presentation to 

2



- 3 - 

this meeting.  Ms Furley indicated that she would address the 
meeting during agenda item 12, “The Area Assessment”. 

(ii) Minute 176 – Pump Priming Grant Awards
As previously agreed, the Service Manager (Policy and 
Partnerships) confirmed that a report on this matter would be 
submitted to a future meeting of the Board. 

MH

6. Community Cohesion in Harrow:    
The Board was shown a brief video introduced by Hazel Blears, Secretary 
of State for Communities and Local Government, which explored what was 
meant by community cohesion, who the relevant stakeholders were, how it 
linked with other agencies, and how it could be mainstreamed.  It 
highlighted that community cohesion was the responsibility of everyone 
who delivered services and everyone in the community, not just the 
Council. 

The Director of Community and Cultural Services and the Head of 
Communications, Harrow Council, introduced a joint report which 
summarised the findings of some research commissioned by the Council, 
in the light of recent MORI surveys suggesting a reduction in cohesion in 
the Borough, to identify the underlying factors affecting the perception of 
community cohesion.  The report also provided an overview of a proposed 
campaign aimed at improving community cohesion.  Board members’ 
comments on the research findings, and endorsement of the proposed 
campaign, were sought. 

There was concern as to whether the economic downturn would have an 
impact on community cohesion.  The Director of Community and Cultural 
Services confirmed that cohesion tended to suffer during recessions, but 
hate crime levels were being monitored and so far were not showing a 
significant increase.  It was also noted that this was a Council campaign, 
and the extent of partner involvement was queried; the need to ensure a 
consistent message across all partners was highlighted.  The meeting was 
advised that the steering group on this issue included representatives from 
a range of partners, with the exception of the business community, from 
whom representation would be sought, and officers were talking to police, 
volntary and community sector and PCT colleagues about how to ensure 
the campaign’s message was spread across the borough.  

Board members made a number of comments on the proposed campaign, 
as follows: 

• there was disappointment that the campaign focused solely on 
residents and did not include businesses; 

• the campaign should celebrate similarities between communities; 
• it was felt that the campaign took a good approach and was very 

positive, but focused primarily on cohesion between people from 
different ethnic communities.  There also needed to be cohesion 
between different generations, and between affluence and 
deprivation;  

• there was some uncertainty as to whom the campaign’s message 
was aimed at; 

• some members felt that there was a lack of connection between the 

JK, AP 

3



- 4 - 

campaign and some of the issues identified in the research, such as 
the importance of language.  It was suggested that a campaign 
around the issue of language would not be difficult to mount and 
could be very valuable; 

• there was a need to give consideration as to how the campaign 
would reach socially excluded groups; and 

• the further education sector, not just schools, was very effective at 
bringing together people of different cultures and age groups. 

Officers undertook to take the comments into consideration. 

AGREED:  That (1) the comments set out above be noted; and 

(2) the Community Cohesion Marketing Campaign be endorsed and 
supported. 

AH

All to note 

7. Scrutiny Review of 'Delivering a Strengthened Voluntary and 
Community Sector for Harrow' - Final Report:
The Board considered a reference from the meeting of Harrow Council’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 9 December 2008, which set out the 
final report of the scrutiny review of the Council’s support for the voluntary 
and community sector. 

The Director of Community and Cultural Services, Harrow Council, 
reported that the Council had now reviewed the 22 recommendations 
arising from the scrutiny review report in detail.  Of the recommendations, 
17 were agreed, 1 was not agreed and 4 would be developed further as 
part of the development of a robust third sector strategy to be submitted to 
Cabinet in autumn 2009. 

The report was welcomed.  There was concern, however, that there 
appeared to be an omission from the report, in terms of the role of elected 
Members in engaging with the voluntary and community sector.  Voluntary 
organisations were unclear as to whether there had been a change in 
policy and Councillors were no longer nominated to voluntary sector 
organisations.  In response, it was advised that there had not been a 
change in policy.  It was agreed that this issue be looked into. 

Board members were pleased that the recommendations were being 
looked at carefully but were concerned that implementation should not be 
unnecessarily delayed, and there was disappointment at the lack of 
engagement with the voluntary and community sector in taking the 
recommendations forward.  In response, it was advised that there had 
been broad agreement with the voluntary and community sector, but that it 
was also appropriate for the Council itself to now consider the implications 
of the review.  There was also a request to engage with the business 
community on this.  A Board member additionally advised that one of the 
issues not included in the final report had been the lack of allowances or 
expenses for attending Council meetings such as this, scrutiny or grants 
panel meetings, which resulted in voluntary sector representatives being 
out of pocket.  In response, it was agreed that the issue regarding 
expenses be looked into, and the Council’s commitment to moving the 
review forward in a timely way and in partnership was re-emphasised. 

JK

JK

All to note

4



- 5 - 

AGREED:   That the report of the scrutiny review be noted. 

8. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Update:    
The Board received a report of the Corporate Director of Adults and 
Housing, Harrow Council, which advised of the production, in line with new 
statutory requirements, of a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA).  
The JSNA was intended as a strategic tool which identified the health and 
well-being needs and inequalities of a local population, to inform more 
effective and targeted service provision across agencies.  

It was noted that one of the groups identified by the JSNA as likely to have 
needs requiring further investigation was people who funded their own care 
provision (self-funders).  Board members were concerned that there should 
be adequate support for this group, for example in providing advice on 
legal issues related to employing a carer.   The meeting was advised that 
partners were looking at how self-funders could be provided with better 
information and support, and that any safeguarding investigations relating 
to residential provision already included self-funders. 

With regard to the need for further analysis of the prescription of anti-
depressants, there was particular concern about the self-employed in the 
current economic climate.  It was advised that the JSNA had been put 
together prior to the economic downturn, and it was acknowledged that 
further work would be required to keep the document up-to-date. 

AGREED:  That the development and progress of the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment be noted. 

All to note

9. Primary and Community Care Strategy 2008/9 - 2012/13:    
The Board considered the Primary and Community Care Strategy for 
2008/9 to 2012/13, which set out Harrow PCT’s vision for primary and 
community care over the next five years.  The strategy described current 
services, set out a case for change, identified key areas for development 
and outlined the model for delivery. 

A number of detailed questions were asked and answered relating to the 
extent to which geographical or racial differences were a factor in certain 
health inequalities, the balance between acute and preventative services, 
and the PCT’s openness to commissioning services from the voluntary 
sector.    

Board members supported and commended the strategy, and were 
impressed with its depth, but were of the view that it was rather 
introspective.  There was little mention of the voluntary sector or of the role 
of carers, and the need to recognise the importance of health checks for 
carers in reducing the call on acute services was highlighted.  The need for 
the PCT to show leadership in the partnership with the voluntary sector 
had been demonstrated by losing a previous opportunity to obtain 
demonstrator site funding from the Department of Health.  The awarding of 
grants to voluntary sector organisations had been fraught.  The Director of 
Commissioning, Harrow PCT, undertook to take the comments on board. 

It was also suggested that documents such as the strategy should be 

AB

All to note
5



- 6 - 

circulated among partner organisations at a senior level while still in draft. 

AGREED:  That the report be noted. All to note

10. Sustainable Community Strategy:    
The Board received a draft report of the Assistant Chief Executive, Harrow 
Council, which would be considered by the Council’s Cabinet meeting on 
26 March 2009 and which set out the draft Sustainable Community 
Strategy for adoption.  The results of the consultation on the strategy and a 
further draft of the strategy which had been amended to take account of 
the outcomes of the consultation had been circulated on a supplemental 
agenda.  The strategy set out a vision for the future of Harrow to 2020 
which would inform the planning processes of all partners. 

Officers were congratulated on the production of the strategy.  It was noted 
that there had been 2 summits of residents to inform the strategy, one of 
which had not been very well attended.  Officers confirmed that lessons 
had been learnt with regard to publicity for the events. 

A Board member stated that a lot of work had been done around business 
incubation, but there was no reference to it in the strategy.  Officers 
undertook to look into this. 

Board members were requested to forward any other detailed comments 
on the strategy to the Service Manager (Policy and Partnerships) as soon 
as possible. 

AGREED:  That (1) the report be noted; and 

(2) any detailed comments on the strategy be forwarded to the Service 
Manager (Policy and Partnerships), Harrow Council, as soon as possible. 

MH, TT

All to note 

11. Local Area Agreement Refresh:    
The Board considered a report of the Assistant Chief Executive, Harrow 
Council, which advised of changes to some of the indicators in the Local 
Area Agreement based on new available data or changes to the indicator’s 
definition. 

At the meeting, it was advised that two further targets had been agreed 
since the report had been written: NI13 relating to migrants’ English 
language skills, for which the baseline was 71% and there was a target 
increase of 6% over 3 years, and NI198 relating to the mode of travel to 
school, for which the target was a 3% decrease but the baseline had yet to 
be agreed.  There were also corrections to 2 targets in the report: NI11 had 
target of 45.5%, and NI140 referred to the fair treatment of local services, 
not to the percentage of people from different backgrounds getting on well 
together.  NI115 (substance misuse by young people) was now being 
recommended to be included into the local section of the agreement as the 
2008/09 result was already much better than the national average.  This 
would mean the required target for 2010/11 would be very stretching, and 
this could not be justified as an improvement priority for the amount of 
resources required. 

There was concern as to whether the economic downturn would reduce 
6



- 7 - 

the number of migrants and so affect performance against NI13, but it was 
advised that the indicator was based on the number of people successfully 
completing a language course, not the number enrolling. 

AGREED:  That the proposed changes in the Harrow Local Area 
Agreement be agreed. 

All to note

12. The Area Assessment:    
The Service Manager (Policy and Partnerships), Harrow Council, reported 
on the structure and requirements of the new Comprehensive Area 
Assessment (CAA).  The Partnership had agreed to develop a self 
evaluation which would be submitted to the Audit Commission, and which 
would provide the basis for a partnership development programme to 
improve performance and delivery of outcomes.  The first draft of the 
programme would be produced in early summer. 

Annette Furley, CAA Lead from the Audit Commission, advised that CAA 
went live from 1 April 2009 but that dialogue and the collection of  
information had already started.  In June or July, she would come back to 
the Partnership to advise of potential flags, and in September she would 
bring back the draft area assessment.  The Partnership would have the 
opportunity to respond, and the final area assessment would then be 
published on the Audit Commission’s website.  There would be no 
surprises in the results, however, as there would be on-going dialogue 
throughout.   

It was noted that there was a strong emphasis on engagement and 
involvement of communities.  Ms Furley advised that she had a strong 
background in community engagement and would be happy to share her 
experience.  In addition, good practice guidance on engagement had 
recently been produced. 

AGREED:   That the above be noted. All to note

13. Any Other Urgent Business:    

(i) Consultation on Stroke and Major Trauma Services 
Board members’ attention was drawn to the Healthcare for London 
consultation on proposals for stroke and trauma services.  Harrow 
PCT had organised a roadshow at the Civic Centre on 24 March 
2009 between 2pm and 8pm, and all were invited to attend.  The 
proposals for stroke services included the creation of a state-of-the-
art stroke care centre at Northwick Park Hospital, while the 
proposals for major trauma care included 3-  or 4-centre options. 

(ii) Partnership Response to the Economic Downturn
It was suggested that the Partnership Board should take a lead in 
addressing the problems caused by the economic downturn locally, 
and that at its next meeting the Board consider establishing a 
working group to identify ways to help residents and businesses and 
to promote these. 

(iii) Agreement in Principle – Bangladesh Olympics Association
 The Director of Community and Cultural Services, Harrow Council, 

All to note

MH

7



- 8 - 

was pleased to announce the signing of an Agreement in Principle 
by the Bangladesh Olympics Association, which would see 
Bangladeshi athletes use the facilities of a range of public and 
private sector partners in the Borough. 

(iv) Smoke-Free Homes
Board members’ attention was drawn to the PCT’s campaign to 
increase the number of smoke-free homes, by getting Harrow 
residents to sign up on the PCT website to a gold, silver or bronze 
promise on keeping their homes smoke-free. 

All to note

All to note

 [Note:  The Meeting, having commenced at 6.05 pm, closed at 8.10 pm] 

8



Harrow Strategic Partnership: Workshop 26 May 2009 
 

Harrow Healthy Living Centre 
 
CONTEXT 
 
The purpose of this paper (and the presentation that will accompany it on 26 May) is 
to increase awareness of the Harrow Healthy Living Centre (HHLC) and to invite 
stakeholders to support its long term financial sustainability. 
 
The Harrow Healthy Living Centre was opened in February 2004.  It is located in a 
prominent position on Wealdstone High Street together with the local library, a Centre 
run by Harrow Youth Services and a Health Advice and Support Centre managed by 
NHS Harrow. 
 
The HHLC was one of over 250 Healthy Living Centres sponsored by the Big Lottery 
Fund to celebrate the Millennium.  As the opening date suggests, the HHLC was one 
of the last of these to open and, as with the others, received a five year grant. In our 
case the grant was some £780,000 of which £150,000 was spent on capital. 
 
The initial vision of the HLC was    
 

 To promote healthy life styles by developing services and encouraging use of 
existing facilities 

 Manage a  café staffed by disabled people providing healthy food that will 
attract users to the centre and provide income 

 Run a training and employment project for disabled people who will run the 
Café 

 Provide training programmes for people who provide service to disabled 
people. 

 
THE PAST 
 
The grant submission was originally made in the name of a number of local charities 
led by Harrow Association of Voluntary Services (HAVS). By the time the grant was 
approved the lead had changed to Choices4All.  Ultimately (in 2007) Harrow Healthy 
Living Centre Ltd. was created in its own right as a Company Limited by Guarantee 
and, later, a Registered Charity. 
 
The HHLC Board agreed to locate the centre in Wealdstone High Street at the request 
of Harrow Council as a part of re-generation of Wealdstone.  In return the Council 
allow the HHLC to occupy the premises rent free although there are significant 
service charges levied (c£27,000 pa). 
 
The HHLC consists of a large (70 seat) Community Café together with 3 Meeting 
Rooms (each accommodating 20 people max.).  The Café offers work experience for 
some 20 Learning Disabled clients, on a rota, and a healthy menu for the general 
public.  The Meeting Rooms are open to any organisation to use at a semi-commercial 
rate.  Sometimes they are used for health and well being topics. 
 

Agenda Item 4
Pages 9 to 12

9



With perfect hindsight it was always going to be difficult for the HHLC to be 
economically sustainable without the Big Lottery Grant: 
. 

 Until last year none of the Learning Disabled clients were funded for the 
HHLC to provide a service to them.  To date we now have 2 that are funded, 1 
from Hillingdon and 1 from Harrow – this is discussed further below. 

 As a Community Café the HHLC’s Red Brick Café is too large to be 
financially solvent.  It can only attract limited passing trade and many national 
chains would struggle to break-even with a similar size establishment- even if 
located in the centre of Harrow. 

 The Meeting Rooms are only capable of providing limited health and well-
being activities. 

 The HLC was not set up with financial or other practical support from the 
local NHS. 

 Inevitably it took time to build up custom in the Café and  this meant that in 
early years a disproportionate amount of the grant was spent, meaning that 
reserves were at a low level at the end of the 5 year period. 

 
PRESENT 
 
By 2008/9 the Café income with the two Learning Disability placements had built up 
to £90,000, but not including the Lottery grant was losing some £75,000.  Meeting 
Room hire and other incidentals brought in some £25.000 pa but, discounting the 
grant, had losses of around £65,000.  Without the Lottery grant, therefore, around 
£130,000 pa is needed. Reserves are down to around £30,000 with exit costs between 
£10 -15,000. 
 
The original Director of the HHLC left in July 2008, and the Trustees have appointed 
me on an Interim basis to prepare and implement a sustainable business plan.  I have 
had experience of working with some 20 HLCs as part of the Big Lottery’s 
Development and Support Programme. 
 
A number of actions have been taken over the last few months and, as a result, the 
HLC is getting close to short term balance.  The longer term challenge remains. To 
secure short term viability one of the meeting rooms has been ‘rented’ to North West 
London Community Foundation full time.  Partitions have been bought so that part of 
the Café can be hired for other activities during the day.  In order to provide space for 
‘funded’ clients, the parents/carers of the current students have been warned that the 
students will have to leave if they can’t obtain funding. 
 
Specific funding guarantees (in addition to café income and room hire): 
 
Student Placements:      £18,000 
Council Vol Sector Grant     £   9000 
Council 6 months Service Charge Suspension £ 13000 
Further Council Assistance    £   7000 
PCT Vol. Sector Grant    £11,500 
PCT ‘Choosing Health’ Projects    £   3000 
North West London Community Foundation  £ 12000 
Miscellaneous      £   7000 
Total        £80,500 

10



 
Although this is still £60k short of the sum needed to break even by the end of the 
financial year, there are significant possibilities for more funding shortly: 

 Discussions are ongoing via the Harrow Learning Disability Team (who have 
been extremely helpful) about getting a number of the current students 
reviewed to assess their eligibility for funding.  There about 6 of these who 
could well gain direct payments and there has already been hopeful progress 
for 2 of these.  This source could bring in £30,000 pa. 

 
 Two bids have been made to outside agencies: Awards for All and City Bridge 
Trust.  If successful these could bring in £45,000 pa (c £25,000 in 2009/10). 

 
 There are a number of other external bodies where it may be possible to put in 
bids. 

 
As stated above Reserves are around £30,000 and it is felt that above sources of 
guaranteed income will be enough to guarantee continuing to operate until November 
and that by that time enough money should have been secured to be viable into the 
next financial year. 
 
THE FUTURE 
 
Clearly it is desirable that in the future the HHLC has a secure enough financial base 
to avoid the desperate scramble for funds that has proved necessary this year.  
 
It is for consideration as to whether current (funded) activities are sufficiently 
consistent with the original vision, or whether, indeed, the original vision is still 
appropriate and financially sustainable.  The location and character of the HLC makes 
it highly suitable for a Community hub and it has been set up to provide training and 
work experience for the increasing Learning  and other Disability population in 
Harrow.  Ironically the aspect of the vision embodied in its title – health and well-
being- is not sufficiently well represented in the activities and without further support 
from NHS Harrow this will continue. 
 
How can the stakeholders represented at the HSP help?  The purpose of the paper is to 
increase understanding of the current position of your HLC.  It is not solely a question 
of handing over money, what will be required is commitment and ‘ownership’.  
Anyone walking into the Red Brick Café in Wealdstone can recognise its potential as 
a Community resource, but this will require action in partnership.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is suggested, therefore, that a Workshop be held in September around this topic and 
the planning for this workshop is carried out by the HLC in conjunction with senior 
representatives of the HSP. 
 
Clive Myers 
Interim Director, HHLC 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 1 of 168 

 

 
NWL COLLABORATIVE 

PROGRAMME 
 

 

NWL COLLABORATIVE 
COMMISSIONING  

INTENTIONS 
2009-2014  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 5
Pages 13 to 28

13



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 2 of 168 

CONTENT 
 Page 
SECTION 1   FOREWARD     
  

3 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 4 
  
  
SECTION 2   VISION AND VALUES 17 
  
SECTION 3   CONTEXT 18 
        
    Introduction 18 

Population demographics and health status 19 
    Healthcare provision  49 

Local and national health priorities 68 
    Provider landscape 76 

Insights from patients, public, clinicians and 
partners 

88 

    Investment in healthcare 95 
      
  
SECTION 4   STRATEGY 99 
        
    Introduction 99 
    Prioritisation Process 99 
    Strategic Objectives 100 
    Initiatives 102 

Cancer 103 
Maternity 112 
Improving Surgical  
Services for Children and Young People in Hospital 118 

Stroke 123 
Major Trauma 127 
Unscheduled Care 132 
Improving Clinical Practice 137 
Strengthening the Provider Landscape 142 

    Overall impact, by strategic objective 146 
  
SECTION 5   DELIVERY 150 
  
    Past delivery performance 150 
    Organisational arrangements 150 
    Enabling Initiatives 157 

Risk management 164 
In-year monitoring 167 

  
SECTION 6   DECLARATION 168 
 
        
   
      
 

14



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 3 of 168 

SECTION 1 
FOREWARD 

 
This Collaborative Commissioning Intentions Plan describes a five year strategy for 
commissioning at a supra-PCT level. It draws on the Commissioning Strategies 
developed for each of the eight PCTs in NWL (NWL) and the Healthcare for London 
(HFL) programme, focusing specifically on those areas where there is significantly 
greater value in commissioning collectively than individually. 
 
The Plan is the product of joint working between the eight PCTs and their respective 
partner organisations; the public and clinicians. The work is overseen by the 
Collaborative Commissioning Group (CCG) which is the Executive arm of the Joint 
Committee of the NWL PCTs (JCPCT). Details of how the plan will be delivered are 
described in Section 5 and the governance arrangements for the JCPCT and its sub-
committees are outlined in the NWL Collaborative Governance Arrangements 
(Appendix 1). 
 
The plan sets out the JCPCT’s vision for healthcare in NWL over the next 5 years 
within the context of the current health status of the population served; the level and 
quality of healthcare provision in NWL and the challenges identified through the local 
needs assessment work and the work of the Clinical Reference Group and 
associated Clinical Networks. From this a set of strategic objectives have been 
derived that outline the programme of work for the next 5 years. Specific initiatives to 
deliver these objectives in the short and longer term are then described in more detail 
with an assessment of any risks and how success will be measured and monitored. 
 
The CCI was developed through a series of planning workshops with key partners to 
agree the approach content and feedback mechanisms and to determine the 
overarching Vision, Values, Strategic Objectives and Prioritisation Criteria. 
 
Participants in the development of this plan are listed below. 
 
NWL PCTs 
Brent Hillingdon 
Ealing Hounslow 
Hammersmith & Fulham Kensington & Chelsea 
Harrow Westminster 
 
NWL Clinical Reference Group; NWL Clinical Networks; NWL Specialist 
Commissioning Group; Local Boroughs – through the CSPs; Patients and the Public 
– PCT engagement events and routine feedback mechanisms. 
 
This collaborative plan is a key component of the developing strategy for health 
improvement across London and should be read in conjunction with PCT 
Commissioning Strategy plans and the Healthcare for London plans. Although 
describing a 5 year time period, the initiatives will be refreshed annually. 

 
 
Mark Easton 
Chair, NWL Collaborative Commissioning Group 
March 2009 

15



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 4 of 168 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This Collaborative Commissioning Intentions (CCI) Plan describes a five year 
strategy for commissioning at a supra-PCT level for the eight PCTs in NWL (NWL). 
The plan sets out over five chapters the vision for health and healthcare for the 
population of NWL; the environment in which we operate; our strategic plan; and how 
we intend to deliver the proposed changes.  
 
VISION AND VALUES 

 
Vision 
 
Over the next 5 years the PCTs in NWL will work together, where this adds value, to 
transform the health and well being of existing and new and changing populations. 
 
The aim is to improve health, reduce inequalities and transform the quality and 
delivery of health services for the population of NWL, building on work within 
individual PCTs and the Healthcare for London programme (Better Health, Better 
Healthcare). 
 
This will be achieved through the development of strong and sustainable 
partnerships with patients and the public; providers of healthcare; and health and 
social care within the world class commissioning framework. 
 
VALUES 
 

Working together for patients. We put patients first in everything we do. We 

put the needs of patients and communities before organisational boundaries.  

 
Improving lives. We strive to improve health and well-being and people’s 
experiences of the NHS.  
 

Everyone counts. We use our resources for the benefit of the whole community, 

and make sure nobody is excluded or left behind.  
 
Commitment to quality of care. We ensure continuous service development led by 
clinicians in partnership with patients, founded on the best international research and 
practice.  
 
Partnerships in care. We will strengthen partnerships between commissioners, 
patients/public, healthcare providers, local authorities and the third sector so that the 
public receive equitable and appropriate care.   
 
Strategic investment of resources. We will develop joint investment/disinvestment 
strategies that ensure the best use of taxpayers’ money. 

 
 
 
 
 

16



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 5 of 168 

 
CONTEXT 
 
This section of the plan sets the scene for the development of the collaborative 
commissioning strategy. It describes the demographics and health status of the 
population of NWL; how healthcare is currently provided, in terms of the way care is 
provided, the structures through which care is delivered and the level of investment; 
and the local and national context within which we operate.  Insights from patients, 
public, clinicians and partners have then been sought to shape and focus the plan 
going forward. 
 
The health system in NWL is highly complex – ranging from small GP practices 
providing primary care locally to major teaching hospitals conducting cutting edge 
specialist research and treating patients from across the country including the first 
Academic Health Sciences Centre in the UK based at Imperial Healthcare Trust.  
 
Demographics and Health Status of the Population 
 
• The NWL sector covers eight PCTs with a resident population estimated at 1.85 

million people (ONS data).   
• The population is predicted to grow by 3.9% over the next 10 years. Growth in 

PCT populations appears to be concentrated more in the inner boroughs.  
• The overall growth disguises variation in growth rates by age band.  For those 

PCTs with the highest predicted growth, the greatest growth appears to be in the 
0-15 age band and the 45-64 age bands. 

• There is considerable variation in ethnic composition of the PCT populations. 
• The greatest change in ethnic profile over the next 10 years will be in the white 

population with an overall decrease of 4%. By contrast, both the Asian and 
Chinese & Other populations are predicted to rise by around 2% each. 

• The population of NWL is not particularly deprived when viewed in the round. 
However, the  PCT rankings vary from 53 (NHS Brent) which is the most deprived 
in the  sector to 205 (NHS Harrow) which is the least deprived in the sector. Even 
at PCT level, the rankings disguise significant pockets of deprivation. 

• NWL sector average life expectancy is above the England and London average 
for both males and females. 

• There are wide differences in health outcomes for various diseases. However, 
these differences in health outcomes can be attributed to differentials that exist in 
socio-economic groups, ethnicity, pockets of deprivation in wards across PCTs 
and also differences in lifestyle and behaviour.  

• There are no significant variations in prevalence rates between 2006/7 & 2007/8 
across the NWL sector for most diseases. However, for a number of diseases 
there are noticeable variations in prevalence rates at PCT level.   

 
Four diseases have a large impact on the health and well being of the population of 
NWL. 
  
Coronary Heart Disease (CHD) 
• CHD is one of the main causes of death for all NWL PCT’s, with higher premature 

mortality in higher deprived or ethnic populations. Borough level rates mask large 
inequalities. However, all PCT’s improved the CHD mortality rate from 2003-
2006. 

• The prevalence of CHD is not predicted to change significantly in NWL over the 
next 12 years.  

17



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 6 of 168 

• Future treatment priorities will include ensuring access to cardiac rehabilitation, 
developing community based heart failure services and end of life care and 
ensuring the management of angina patients is optimised. 

 
Stroke 
• Stroke is the commonest cause of severe disability in adults.  
• Increased incidence of stroke is strongly associated with ageing  
• High numbers of strokes are predicted in specific wards in the outer NWL PCTs 

(Ealing, Brent, Harrow and Hillingdon) which will need to be taken into account in 
determining the geographical configuration of stroke services.  

 
Cancer 
• Cancer treatments and services have improved dramatically over last seven 

years. NWL has the fourth lowest mortality rate for cancer in England (2008). 
• The incidence rates per 100,000 of population are greater for breast cancer and 

prostate cancer, and lowest for colorectal and lung cancer.   
• For most tumour sites, the earlier a cancer can be diagnosed, the better the 

clinical outcomes.  
• Screening programmes and awareness-raising are vital in combating the disease.  
 
Diabetes 
• Diabetes is becoming a more common condition world-wide. It can affect people 

of all ages in every population.  
• Significant inequalities exist in the risk of developing diabetes, in access to health 

services and the quality of those services, and in health outcomes, particularly 
with regard to people with Type 2 diabetes.  

• The prevalence rate in NWL is slightly higher than the England average with little 
change in prevalence predicted to 2010.  

• However, the NWL average disguises significant differences in prevalence rates 
between the PCTs. Harrow, Ealing, Brent and Hounslow all have prevalence 
rates above 5% which probably relates to their high ethnic populations. 

 
How healthcare is currently provided  
 
Provider landscape 
 
NWL PCTs commission healthcare from a wide range of providers.  The health 
system in NWL is highly complex – ranging from small GP practices providing 
primary care locally to the UK’s first Academic Health Science Centre, which brings 
together the delivery of healthcare services, teaching and research in a single 
organisation, in partnership with the wider West London healthcare community.  
There are 7 Acute Trusts, 2 Mental Health Trusts and 8 PCT provider services, which 
have formed 4 groupings: Inner NWL Alliance; Hounslow with Richmond & 
Twickenham; Ealing & Harrow; and two borough based APOs; Brent and Hillingdon. 
 
 
Hospital Trusts 
 
All of the acute non-FT Trusts have been rated as amber or red in relation to the 
quality and safety of their services for 2008-9.   Three Trusts failed to meet the A&E, 
4 hour target and five Trusts declared not met/insufficient assurance on at least 1 
national core standard in 2007-8. 
 

18



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 7 of 168 

The PCTs purchased the following activity from acute providers in 2007-8 
 
Type of activity Quantity 
Acute Trusts  
Spells 519126 
Outpatients 2054725 
A&E 790291 
Mental Health Trusts  
Occupied bed days 612506 
Day cases 68504 
Outpatients 92627 
 
NHS London is currently undertaken a stock take of acute provider ability to achieve 
FT status in the light of HfL projects and changes to commissioning. This is likely to 
signal a strategic review of provider services within NWL. This has already been 
anticipated and an initiative is included within section 4 of the CCI. 
 
Community Providers 
 
NHS London has requested all PCTs to demonstrate how they will achieve full 
Autonomous Provider Organisation (APO) status for their provider arms by April 
2009, and to complete the externalisation process by April 2010.  Plans in NWL are 
outlined below: 
 
Inner London Alliance 
The Alliance for NHS Community Services in inner NWL brings together the provider 
services arms of the PCTs in Westminster, Hammersmith & Fulham and  Kensington 
& Chelsea.   The Central West London Community Service was formed in July 2008.  
The current Alliance falls short of full integration as statutory accountability for the 
performance of each of the provider services arms remains with the respective host 
PCT.  However, it provides a framework within which to test future models to achieve 
full integration.  A single over-arching management team has been established and a 
Joint Provider Committee (JPC) has been created as a formal sub-committee of each 
PCT Board. 
 
Whilst the institutional end point for many community services within the Alliance is 
not completely clear, the three PCTs are currently exploring a range of organisational 
options for the future management and delivery of their community services. These 
include options within and external to the NHS, including joint ventures.  The JPC 
proposed the formation of a Community Foundation Trust (CFT) to the PCT Boards 
for consideration in January 2009. The proposal to form a CFT was accepted. 
 
Outer NWL Federation 
PCTs in outer NWL (Brent, Harrow, Hillingdon, Hounslow and Ealing) have 
established a range of vehicles to take their community services forward. Hounslow 
has linked with Richmond & Twickenham,  Ealing has linked with Harrow,  and two 
borough based APOs have been formed in Brent and Hillingdon. As with the inner 
grouping the aim is to create fit-for-purpose organisations that can compete in a 
market environment 
 
 
The strengths and weaknesses of Provider services are described throughout the 
CCI. These are summarised at a high level below. 
 

19



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 8 of 168 

Strengths: Three teaching hospitals, one of these is the UK’s first AHSC 
  Broad range of local provision 
  Progress being made in terms of reducing waiting times for treatment 
   
Weaknesses: Performance against HCC reports (Urgent Care & Maternity) and 

National Sentinel Stroke Audit is mixed with some providers achieving 
best performing and others least well performing. 
Two NWL Acute Trusts (NWLH & WMUH) reported material financial 
variance at Month 4.  NWLH is forecasting to achieve a breakeven 
plan and WMUH is forecasting a £1m variance from plan. 

  Provider arm capacity and understanding of services being provided. 
 Fragmentation of services 
 
Market development plans 
 
Market development plans are still in their infancy and have mainly been initiatives 
within individual PCTs. The externalisation of PCT Provider services is the first step 
in shaping the market for community care, although it is not anticipated that there will 
be major changes in service provision before 2010-11. The development of 
independent sector provision of acute care has not resulted in the expected level of 
change anticipated by the DOH and within NWL and there is sufficient capacity within 
the acute trusts to deliver 18 weeks resulting in under-utilisation of the DH agreed 
ISTC provision. The main drivers for change on the supply-side will be the 
Healthcare for London programme, particularly in relation to Stroke, Urgent Care, the 
Local Hospitals project and Polyclinics, and the development of a NWL Children, 
Young People and Maternity Services network. Both the Healthcare for London 
programme and the Paediatric work is likely to lead to changes in the provider 
landscape within NWL. 
 
Healthcare provision 
 
The focus of the NWL collaborative programme over the last 18 months has been on 
reviewing clinical scale, capacity and quality.  
 
In prioritising their collaborative work programme for 2007-9, the CCG paid close 
attention to a number of recent reviews (Sentinel audit, Health Care Commission 
reviews) which demonstrated a high level of variability between services in the sector 
and a variation from national averages. 
 
As for other sectors in London, a number of clinical service reconfigurations had 
been implemented in NWL over the last 5 years to address issues of patient safety 
as well as clinical quality to achieve better health outcomes (e.g. concentration of 
vascular surgery within a network arrangement; reconfiguration of NICU providers 
into a network; implementation of the recommendations in the Coronary Heart 
Disease NSF through the Cardiac network; merger of the St Mary’s and 
Hammersmith Trust renal units to create a single lead centre for the sector etc.). 
These changes were supported by PCTs working with their providers to deliver 
improved clinical pathways with consideration of the access, capacity and workforce 
implications. 
 
During 2005-7, the focus on commissioning of health services had been on the 
delivery of national access targets and on ensuring value for money. Over the last 
12-18 months, the focus has changed, as a result of the work of the CRG, endorsed 
by the CCG, on improving the quality of services provided to the people of NWL.  For 
example, improving access to primary care, maternity and neonatal care and 

20



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 9 of 168 

reshaping unscheduled care services is known to improve both the quality and health 
outcomes from an intervention.  A collaborative approach to commissioning 
paediatric surgery and acute stroke services both derive from evidence used 
successfully elsewhere to show that current service configurations do not yield the 
best outcomes. 
 
The development of national standards of care has provided a means of measuring 
the quality of care provision (see data on stroke care as an example of this) and this 
approach is being adopted in SLAs to ensure that all providers are working to deliver 
the same level of quality. The development of true outcome measures (as opposed 
to structure or process measures used as a proxy for outcome) is in its infancy. 
However, some excellent work on 'Monitoring Clinical Outcome, Patient Experience 
and Equality and Diversity Metrics for SLA 2008-2009' is underway as part of the 
SLA with Imperial Healthcare. This work has been tested during 2008-9 and will be 
rolled across the sector in 2009-10. 
 
The CRG also agreed an ambitious programme of work during 2008-9 on 
understanding variability across patient pathways with the intention of developing 
pathway indicators to support targeted interventions, leading over time to 
improvements in care within NWL. The initial phase of this work was completed in 
October 2008.  
 
It is this variation in performance and a commitment to achieving levels of heath and 
heath care comparable with the world’s best which are the drivers for the NWL 
strategy over the next 5 years.  
 
Investment in healthcare 
 
Total investment in healthcare in the sector will be around £3.3 billion in 2009-10 
rising to £3.6 billion in 2012-13, a growth of 12% overall. The brought forward surplus 
at the end of 2008-9 is expected to be around £44 million. Over the 4 years period, 
this surplus is predicted to reduce by around 50%. Some of the surplus will be 
reinvested in direct healthcare and some in reducing underlying deficits. However, 
the current uncertainties around the medium to long term financing of the NHS 
suggests that the level of surplus will change over the CCI planning period.  
 
There is considerable variability in the level of increase in investment across the 8 
PCTs. Further sector-wide work is required to link the CSP analysis to programme 
budgeting to understand the importance of the variability in terms of collaborative 
service planning and commissioning.  
 
The local and national context within which we operate 
 
Three reports and the World Class Commissioning initiative set the national and local 
(London) context for strategic commissioning across NWL. These are: 

• “High Quality Care For All. NHS Next Stage Review Final Report” (June 
2008);  

• Better Health, Better Healthcare (2008);  
• NHS Operating Framework 2009-10  

 
“High Quality Care For All” builds on the reforms of the last 10 years and promises 
to have an even more profound affect on NHS services and people’s experience of 
them. If the challenge 10 years ago was capacity, the challenge today is to drive 
improvements in the quality of care. The NHS will be more personalised, responsive 

21



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 10 of 168 

to individuals, focused on prevention, better equipped to keep people healthy and 
capable of giving real control and real choices over care and people’s lives. 
 
The vision and key steps in the document mirror and complement the vision and 
values adopted by the NWL collaborative programme in 2007-9 and refined for the 
2009-14 CCI plan. The information provided in the previous section and within 
section 4 - Initiatives demonstrates that PCTs across NWL are already making 
progress in delivering the Next Stage Review aspirations for the next 10 years. 

“Better Health, Better Healthcare” is a programme of reform run by the NHS and 
local communities in London. It will improve health services throughout the capital 
over the next 10 years. It will make a real change and deliver what we know patients 
want – responsive, safe, accessible and high-quality healthcare.  
 
NWL PCTs have been working both individually and collectively over the last 12 
months to deliver the principles set out in the Healthcare for London programme and 
significant progress has been made in improving partnership working and reducing 
differences in healthcare. Our vision and values build on these principles, whilst the 
strategic objectives and initiatives outlined in section 4 demonstrate where we 
believe collaborative working will ensure delivery of the five priority areas for action 
outlined above and the specific programmes of work within the Healthcare for 
London programme. 
  
The NHS Operating Framework 2009-10 has as its focus ‘Implementing High Quality 
Care for All’. Included within this an approach to planning and managing priorities 
both nationally and locally – the “vital signs“. These describe three levels of priorities 
which PCTs (working with providers) need to explicitly plan to deliver. Tiers 1 and 2 
cover existing and new national priorities, whilst tier 3 allows for local discretion in the 
monitoring of care.   
 
There is significant variability in performance across the eight PCTs in NWL. 
Performance across the board has improved from Q1; however there is still 
considerable work to be done. The CCG discussed performance in October 2008 
and committed to work collectively to address poor and variable performance 
collectively through a process of ‘do once and share’. This work will be developed to 
support the delivery of the CCI in 2009-10. 
 
 
The PCTs in NWL were assessed against the World Class Commissioning 
Competencies  during Dec-January 2008-9 and their individual  CSPs and the NWL 
CCI  formed a key component of the evidence base for the assessments. A high level 
self-assessment carried out in April 2008 suggested each of the PCTs had some way 
to go to achieve the baseline position overall, although there was considerable 
variation against the individual competencies. The NWL Collaborative Programme 
work to date, and planned approach for the next 5 years, provides a strong platform 
for delivery against competencies 2, 3, 4, 5, 8 and 10. In addition, the PCTs have 
agreed a structure for delivering WCC (outlined in Section 5) which will, ensure 
continuous improvement in practice. 
 
Engagement in the CCI planning process 
 
All PCTs have involved their local clinicians, patients and public in the planning 
phase of their Commissioning Strategy Plans (CSPs) through a series of public 
events. The findings from these events have been used to inform their priority setting, 

22



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 11 of 168 

vision and values.  In addition to the engagement of patients, public and local 
clinicians by the PCTs, the NWL Programme Team has also involved a number of 
stakeholders  including local NHS Trusts, local clinicians (through PEC Chairs) and 
funded clinical networks to ensure that the CCI receives significant input around 
priority setting, vision and values from these local partners. Previous engagement 
activity carried out by PCTs has also helped to inform individual PCTs’ CSPs and in 
turn, the CCI.  
 
The key themes which PCTs have consistently found to be high-priority areas for 
local residents are strikingly similar and support the findings from both the HfL and 
nationwide consultations. Some of the key issues highlighted in PCTs’ findings 
include: 
 

• Healthy living and prevention, particularly the need for better information 
being available widely in the community for people to manage their own 
health and wellbeing. 

• Access to primary care services, particularly GP services and Out Of Hours 
(OOH) care.  

• Access to mental health services, in some cases particularly for BME 
communities. 

• Integrated service provision, with a strong emphasis on the need for a 
stronger link between health and social care, with this extending to housing 
and education services. 

• Improving the quality and safety of services. 
• Greater emphasis on involving patients and the public. 

 
A number of Trusts have ongoing engagement initiatives which are highly relevant to 
the collaborative work in NWL and more work is required to draw on the insights 
gained from these engagement activities. Trusts have demonstrated a high level of 
commitment to the continual improvement of how they engage with their patients to 
feed directly into the strategic planning and review of services. 
 
At a sector-level, work will continue to develop leadership in Communications and 
Engagement through a specific engagement initiative (see Delivery section) as well 
as ensuring that there is significant and relevant public engagement within each of 
CCI priorities.  
 
STRATEGY 
 
Having laid out the context for the CCI in section 3, section 4 outlines the NWL 
Collaborative plan to deliver the Vision over the next 5 years. 
 
Strategic Objectives 
 
The CCG has developed a focused set of objectives drawing on individual PCT 
objectives which were then refined through discussions with PCT Chairs, Chief 
Executives and PEC Chairs. The final objectives listed below specifically focus on 
those areas where collaboration is required either at a sector or pan London level. 
 
The PCTs will work in collaboration, where this adds significant value, to: 
 
 
 
 

23



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 12 of 168 

Improve the health of the current and future population of NWL 
 
Individual PCTs, in association with their local Boroughs, will be responsible for 
improving the health of the population. However, the CCG, in line with Better Health, 
Better Healthcare, will continue to monitor indicators of heath across the whole 
population of NWL and will actively champion prevention and early detection 
strategies know to lead to significant improvements in health. 
 
Reduce inequalities 
 
Individual PCTs will focus on reducing inequalities in health (see above). This 
objective focuses on reducing inequalities in access to healthcare. 
 

• Reduce inequalities in access to care and in access to certain treatments (eg. 
cancer drugs). 

 
• Improve the life expectancy of patients with cancer, to below the England 

average, through the commissioning of patient pathways that are compliant 
with NICE Improving Outcomes Guidance and through delivery of the Cancer 
Reform Strategy 2008 goals regarding cancer waiting times and better 
treatment. 

 
• Ensure that all collaborative initiatives (described later) identify and reduce 

inequalities in access to healthcare. 
 
 
Transform the quality and delivery of health services 
 
The PCTs will use the benefits of collaboration across a health system to proactively 
manage the local healthcare market and drive system reform. They will use the 
leverage gained from commissioning healthcare collectively to: 
 

• Reduce variability in the quality of healthcare provision by continuous and 
systematic review of healthcare provision against national and international 
clinical best practice standards.  

 
o By 2013 patients accessing healthcare in NWL will receive care 

commissioned against sector-wide patient pathways (within networks 
where appropriate). 

 
• Improve the overall quality of healthcare for key groups of patients in line with 

national standards. 
 

o By 2014 improve health and social care services for children, young 
people and maternity services to the levels expected within the NSF 
for children, young people and maternity services (2004), Every Child 
Matters  and “Better Health, Better Healthcare”.  

 
o Lead the local reconfiguration of services for patients with vascular 

disease in line with “Better Health, Better Healthcare”.  
 

Stroke patients will have greater access to early detection services and will 
receive acute and rehabilitation care in line with the best in the world. Patients 
with cardiac disease will continue to have access to high quality care and cutting 
edge developments in acute care. 

24



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 13 of 168 

 
o Lead the local reconfiguration of Trauma care in line with “Better 

Health, Better Healthcare”. 
 

o By 2011, ensure that the population has access to a range of 
appropriate (stand alone and networked), high quality and timely 
unscheduled care services. 

 
Become World Class Commissioners 
 
The PCTs will collaborate at a variety of levels across the NWL health system to 
achieve the transformation of health and healthcare for its population. 
Commissioning will be strengthened by: 
 

• Building sustained commissioning capacity and capability within, and across, 
PCTs in line with the aims of ‘World Class Commissioning’.  

 
• Developing health and healthcare information which supports determination 

of future trends, economic analysis and drives investment/disinvestment 
strategies.   

 
• Development of strong partnerships between commissioner and 

patients/public, healthcare providers, local authorities and the third sector in 
the design and delivery of care.   

 
Initiatives 
 
The JCPCT plans to achieve its strategic objectives and overall vision through the 
execution of a targeted set of initiatives. The initiatives outlined below have been 
developed from a list of possible initiatives identified within PCT CSPs or through the 
HFL work programme which were then refined using agreed prioritisation criteria into 
two lists. 
 
List One describes areas of work where there is scope for collaboration on all or part 
of the programme and planning over, at least, a 5 year period is required.  
 
Vascular Health – CHD, Stroke, Diabetes1, Hypertension 
Children, Young People and Maternity Services – delivery of the NSF 
End of Life Care 
Long term conditions 
Unscheduled care 
Major Trauma 
Mental Health 
Cancer – Delivery of the Cancer Reform Strategy 
Provider Landscape 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                 
1 Although diabetes has been identified as a major contributor to ill health and mortality across 
NWL, the focus in 2009-10 will be on improving risk and developing local services through 
CSPs 

25



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 14 of 168 

List Two describes those initiatives, drawn from the above list, which the JCPCT 
intends to focus on in year one of its Strategic Collaborative Commissioning Plan. 
These initiatives are outlined in detail below. 
 
Cancer : IOG Implementation 
  Cancer Waiting times 
Maternity 
Improving Surgical Services for Children and Young People in Hospital 
Stroke 
Major Trauma 
Unscheduled Care 
Improving Clinical Practice 
Strengthening the Provider Landscape 
 
Each initiative is described in more detail in the body of the CCI. 
 
Overall impact, by Strategic Objective 
 
This section provides a summary of the CCI initiatives and assesses their collective 
impact on the delivery of the vision and objectives described in the plan.  
 
The initiatives were selected from a range of initiatives identified by the PCTs in NWL 
because they meet agreed prioritisation criteria, including delivering a key component 
of one or more Strategic Objectives, and because collaboration will deliver the 
overarching vision more effectively. 
 
Individually, the work streams have, and will be, the catalyst to achieving significant 
improvements in the commissioning and delivery of healthcare for the population of 
NWL and will contribute to the vision set out in Better Health, Better Healthcare over 
the next 5 years.  
 
DELIVERY 
 
Past delivery performance 
 
The NWL sector has had a reputation for poor strategic planning and lack of ability to 
deliver change. However, over the last 18 months the position has changed as the 
PCTs have strengthened their approach to collaborative commissioning through the 
funding of a dedicated NWL Collaborative Programme Team and, more recently, 
through funding of dedicated programme team to support the Strengthening 
Commissioning agenda in NWL. 
 
The main body of work during 2007-8 focused on establishing the infrastructure to 
support the delivery of change; developing PIDs for key initiatives and identifying the 
body of evidence and baseline position to support the need for change. Stroke, 
Unscheduled care and Neonatal and Paediatric surgery initiatives will all move to the 
tender/designation phase over the next 6 months with implementation of change, 
subject to consultation, by March 2010 where necessary. 
 
Organisational Arrangements 
 
The NWL sector has agreed a delivery structure which builds on the strength of 
existing Borough and local relationships whilst creating the capacity, authority and 
governance arrangements to commission strategically for services that are best dealt 

26



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 15 of 168 

with at a sub-sector, sector or pan-London level. The aim is to minimise duplication of 
transactional and analytical processes and maximise access to scarce or expensive 
capabilities and commissioning skills. The following section describes the evolving 
commissioning arrangements in NWL. 
 
NWL Collaborative Commissioning 
 
The NWL Strategy Board was established in 2007 to oversee the work of the CCG 
and steer the strategic agenda across the NWL sector. In August 2008, the eight 
PCTs in NWL agreed to form a Joint Committee of the PCTs  to: 

• oversee the identification and delivery of collaborative commissioning 
intentions (CCI) in NWL 

• to lead the implementation in NWL of Healthcare for London (HfL) 
• to lead any formal consultations relating to the CCI or HfL required across the 

sector to deliver service change 
 
NWL Commissioning Partnership 

 
The North West London Acute Partnership is being formed to strengthen 

commissioning for all PCTs in the sector.  The prime focus of the partnership is to 

improve acute sector performance and delivery.  It will do this in three ways: 

 

• determining a viable provider landscape configuration in the sector 

• agreeing acute sector contracts  

• performance monitoring and management of acute sector contracts 

 

Driven by the needs of its constituent PCTs, the Partnership will deliver both 

individual and collective commissioning intentions for Brent, Ealing, Harrow, 

Hounslow, Hillingdon, Hammersmith and Fulham, Kensington and Chelsea and 

Westminster PCTs and their PBC Clusters.    
 
Clinical Networks 
The funded networks relevant to the NWL collaborative work are: 
 

• Cancer 
• Cardiac/Stroke 
• Critical Care 
• PIC 
• NIC 

 
The networks are responsible for advising the CCG on the delivery of clinically 
effective services within their remit. The Cardiac & Stroke and Cancer networks are 
facilitating specific initiatives in the CCI. Details of how the Critical Care network 
plans to support the delivery of the CCI and World Class commissioning is detailed in 
Appendix 14. 
 
 
 
 
 

27



T:\COLLABORATIVE_COMMISSIONING_INTENTIONS\CCI_2009-14\CCI_2009-
14_DOCUMENT&SUPPORTING_APPENDICIES\AMENDABLE_VERSION\NWLCCI09-14_090315_V2.1_Final 
Draft.doc Page 16 of 168 

Delivery Initiatives 
 
Two collaborative initiatives have been identified to support the delivery of the CCI. 
These cover IM&T and Public Engagement. The detail of these initiatives is outlined 
within the body of the CCI. 
 
Risk management 
 
A high level risk assessment has been undertaken for the CCI. The risks outlined 
represent the high level, critical risk factors across the initiatives in the CCI. These 
risks will be monitored closely by the JCPCT. 
 
In-year monitoring 
 
Responsibility for monitoring the delivery of the CCI rests with the Joint Committee of 
the PCTs (JCPCT) supported by the CCG and its sub-groups. Governance 
arrangements are outlined in Appendix 1. Appendix 4 of the Governance framework 
outlines how initiatives are developed from ideas into detailed plans and the process 
by which changes are implemented and monitored. 
 
The JCPCT has responsibility for approving the Project Initiation documentation 
(PID) for each initiative. Each PID is supported by a detailed project timetable and an 
agreed set of metrics against which progress is monitored. The JCPCT receives 
monthly updates on all initiatives. A standard reporting proforma is used (Appendix 
15). In addition, each initiative has a Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) who is 
accountable for its delivery. Each initiative is reviewed at least annually, or more 
regularly as circumstances change. 

28



 
1  H

A
R

R
O

W
 S

TR
A

TE
G

IC
 P

A
R

TN
ER

SH
IP

 
 A

N
N

U
A

L 
R

EP
O

R
T 

20
08

 / 
20

09
 

     W
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r
 
a
n
d
 
w
o
r
k
i
n
g
 
w
i
t
h
 
y
o
u
 

Agenda Item 6
Pages 29 to 56

29



 
2  FO

R
EW

O
R

D
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
3 

 R
EV

IE
W

 O
F 

TH
E 

H
SP

 P
ER

IO
D

 A
PR

IL
 2

00
8 

– 
M

A
R

C
H

 2
00

9
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.4

 

K
ey

 S
uc

ce
ss

es
 o

f t
he

 H
ar

ro
w

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 2

00
8/

09
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.4

 

H
S

P
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.5

 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
 R

ef
re

sh
 –

 W
or

ki
ng

 T
og

et
he

r a
nd

 W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 Y
ou

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.7

 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 R
ef

re
sh

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.8
 

P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y 
R

es
ul

ts
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..9

 

Jo
in

t A
na

ly
tic

al
 G

ro
up

 (J
A

G
)..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..1

0 

 LO
C

A
L 

A
R

EA
 A

G
R

EE
M

EN
T 

PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
20

08
/0

9
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.1

1 
O

ld
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 v
er

su
s 

re
w

ar
d 

gr
an

t.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
15

 

 M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

G
R

O
U

P 
R

EP
O

R
TS

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
17

 

A
du

lt 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t g

ro
up

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..1

7 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

oh
es

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
19

 

S
af

er
 H

ar
ro

w
 M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.2
5 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 

P
eo

pl
e 

S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (C

YP
S

P
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.2

6 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..2
7 

 M
O

VI
N

G
 F

O
R

W
AR

D
:  

N
EX

T 
ST

EP
S

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..2
8 

30



 
3  FO

R
EW

O
R

D
 

 20
08

/0
9 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t y
ea

r f
or

 H
ar

ro
w

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
.  

W
e 

ha
ve

 c
on

cl
ud

ed
 o

ne
 L

AA
, a

gr
ee

d 
a 

ne
w

 o
ne

, r
ef

re
sh

ed
 th

e 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

, r
ev

is
ed

 o
ur

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
tru

ct
ur

es
, a

nd
 c

re
at

ed
 a

 jo
in

t a
na

ly
si

s 
gr

ou
p.

  A
ll 

of
 th

es
e 

ac
hi

ev
em

en
ts

 a
re

 d
oc

um
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
ch

ap
te

rs
 th

at
 fo

llo
w

.  
O

f a
t l

ea
st

 e
qu

al
 im

po
rta

nc
e,

 h
ow

ev
er

, i
s 

th
e 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
st

re
ng

th
en

in
g 

of
 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 b
et

w
ee

n 
pa

rtn
er

s 
th

at
 e

na
bl

e 
us

 to
 a

ct
 c

ol
le

ct
iv

el
y 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 g

en
er

at
e 

th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 th
at

 H
ar

ro
w

 
ne

ed
s.

   
 Th

e 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 a

ny
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

ll 
of

 th
e 

ot
he

rs
 h

av
e 

be
co

m
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 
ap

pa
re

nt
.  

Fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 th
e 

w
ay

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

de
liv

er
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 th

e 
pr

ev
al

en
ce

 o
f y

ou
th

 c
rim

e 
w

hi
ch

, i
n 

tu
rn

, h
as

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
an

d,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
, a

cc
id

en
t a

nd
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

Th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f e
du

ca
tio

na
l p

ro
vi

si
on

 
an

d 
at

ta
in

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
sc

ho
ol

s 
af

fe
ct

s 
th

e 
de

m
an

d 
fo

r f
ur

th
er

 a
nd

 h
ig

he
r e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

po
ol

 o
f s

ki
lle

d 
pe

op
le

 to
 ta

ke
 

fo
rw

ar
d 

H
ar

ro
w

’s
 e

co
no

m
y.

  T
he

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
r’s

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 a

nd
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 d

iff
er

en
t c

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

 
he

lp
s 

to
 s

ha
pe

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
by

 a
ll 

of
 th

e 
ot

he
r p

ar
tn

er
s.

   
 Th

e 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 e
xi

st
s 

be
ca

us
e 

no
ne

 o
f t

he
 P

ar
tn

er
s 

ca
n 

do
 a

s 
w

el
l o

n 
th

ei
r o

w
n.

  W
e 

ne
ed

 e
ac

h 
ot

he
r’s

 c
o-

op
er

at
io

n,
 s

up
po

rt 
an

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
iv

e 
cr

iti
ci

sm
.  

W
e 

ar
e 

be
tte

r a
bl

e 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

fo
r t

he
 a

sp
ira

tio
ns

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 p

eo
pl

e 
by

 w
or

ki
ng

 to
ge

th
er

.  
W

e 
w

or
k 

be
tte

r t
og

et
he

r w
he

n 
w

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
m

on
 a

im
s 

an
d 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

os
e 

in
 th

e 
ne

w
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

.  
 

 Th
is

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t c
on

ta
in

s 
de

ta
ils

 o
f P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

ve
r t

he
 la

st
 y

ea
r a

nd
 s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
am

bi
tio

ns
 fo

r t
he

 fu
tu

re
.  

W
ha

t w
e 

ha
ve

 
al

re
ad

y 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 a

nd
 w

ha
t w

e 
ho

pe
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 d
ep

en
ds

 o
n 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 g
ro

w
in

g 
ou

r s
ha

re
d 

co
m

m
itm

en
t t

o 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

.  
     C

ou
nc

illo
r D

av
id

 A
sh

to
n 

Le
ad

er
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

C
ha

ir 
of

 th
e 

H
SP

 B
oa

rd
 

 

31



 
4 R

EV
IE

W
 O

F 
TH

E 
H

SP
 P

ER
IO

D
 A

PR
IL

 2
00

8 
– 

M
A

R
C

H
 2

00
9  

 
K

ey
 S

uc
ce

ss
es

 o
f t

he
 H

ar
ro

w
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 2
00

8/
09

 
 • 

Th
re

e 
pr

e-
bu

si
ne

ss
 s

ta
rt 

up
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 w

or
ks

ho
ps

 w
ith

 H
ar

ro
w

 in
 B

us
in

es
s 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 L

in
k 

he
ld

 in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

an
d 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
9 

• 
H

ar
ro

w
 h

as
 a

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l s

m
ok

in
g 

ce
ss

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
  M

or
e 

in
te

ns
iv

e 
fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r t

ho
se

 w
ho

 fi
nd

 it
 h

ar
de

r t
o 

qu
it 

sm
ok

in
g 

w
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r. 

• 
22

9 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 (p
re

-s
ta

rts
, n

ew
 a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g)

 re
ce

iv
ed

 s
up

po
rt 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 M
en

to
rin

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
in

 th
e 

se
co

nd
 y

ea
r o

f o
pe

ra
tio

n.
 

• 
Pe

rs
on

al
 b

ud
ge

ts
 a

nd
 s

el
f d

ire
ct

ed
 s

up
po

rt 
fo

r r
ec

ip
ie

nt
s 

of
 s

oc
ia

l 
ca

re
 –

 8
3%

 s
at

is
fie

d 
w

ith
 c

ho
ic

e 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l. 
  

• 
Fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 W

es
t L

on
do

n 
W

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 th

e 
Eu

ro
pe

an
 S

oc
ia

l F
un

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 w

on
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

Ex
ci

te
 p

ro
je

ct
, a

n 
ou

tre
ac

h 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
w

hi
ch

 
in

te
ra

ct
s 

w
ith

 3
00

 u
ne

m
pl

oy
ed

 o
r e

co
no

m
ic

al
ly

 in
ac

tiv
e 

pe
op

le
 li

vi
ng

 in
 

so
ci

al
 h

ou
si

ng
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 

• 
H

ar
ro

w
’s

 c
rim

e 
le

ve
ls

 a
re

 n
ow

 a
m

on
gs

t t
he

 lo
w

es
t i

n 
Lo

nd
on

.  
In

 th
e 

la
te

st
 a

nn
ua

l M
O

R
I p

ol
l i

n 
20

08
, c

rim
e 

ha
s 

fa
lle

n 
fro

m
 fi

rs
t t

o 
th

ird
 

pl
ac

e 
in

 re
si

de
nt

s’
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

fe
ar

 o
f c

rim
e 

in
 th

ei
r t

op
 fi

ve
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

fe
ll 

fro
m

 5
3%

 to
 4

4%
. 

• 
Th

re
e 

of
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 p
ar

ks
 w

er
e 

aw
ar

de
d 

G
re

en
 F

la
g 

St
at

us
 (R

ox
et

h 
an

d 
H

ar
ro

w
 R

ec
re

at
io

n 
G

ro
un

ds
 a

nd
 C

an
no

ns
 P

ar
k)

 th
e 

fir
st

 g
ai

ne
d 

fo
r 

H
ar

ro
w

 

• 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
Po

lic
e 

ha
ve

 jo
in

tly
 fu

nd
ed

 a
 n

ew
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 

po
lic

in
g 

te
am

 

• 
O

ve
r 6

0 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 h
av

e 
ha

d 
so

la
r h

ot
 w

at
er

 p
an

el
s 

in
st

al
le

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
H

ea
tin

g 
H

ar
ro

w
 G

re
en

er
 s

ch
em

e.
  W

ith
 th

e 
G

re
en

 H
om

es
 C

on
ci

er
ge

 
Se

rv
ic

e,
 7

5 
fre

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 s

ur
ve

ys
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ro

vi
de

d 

• 
Fu

rth
er

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
ct

iv
ity

 h
as

 fo
cu

ss
ed

 u
po

n 
de

liv
er

in
g 

si
x 

‘W
ee

ks
 

of
 A

ct
io

n’
, a

n 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
m

an
y 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 ta
rg

et
ed

 a
t 

de
al

in
g 

w
ith

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l, 
tra

ffi
c 

an
d 

cr
im

e 
is

su
es

 a
t 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 
le

ve
l. 

  

• 
A 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

Po
lic

e,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

M
us

lim
 c

om
m

un
ity

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ta

ke
n 

to
 b

ui
ld

 re
si

lie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

  A
 

de
di

ca
te

d 
M

us
lim

 li
ai

so
n 

of
fic

er
 (a

 P
ol

ic
e 

O
ffi

ce
r)

 w
as

 fu
nd

ed
 v

ia
 P

VE
 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 h

el
p 

bu
ild

 re
si

lie
nc

e 
to

 v
io

le
nt

 e
xt

re
m

is
m

 to
ge

th
er

 w
ith

 tw
o 

fu
ll 

tim
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 R

ea
ch

 IN
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ho
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

en
tra

l 
M

os
qu

e.
   

• 
Th

e 
Pa

ss
po

rt 
to

 C
ul

tu
re

 S
ch

em
e 

pr
om

ot
es

 th
e 

m
an

y 
cu

ltu
ra

l 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 
ag

es
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
  K

ey
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

of
 th

e 
fir

st
 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
ai

de
d 

H
in

du
 s

ch
oo

l i
n 

th
e 

U
K;

 th
e 

re
-o

pe
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 G
ay

to
n 

C
en

tra
l L

ib
ra

ry
, a

nd
 th

e 
ne

w
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

en
tra

l M
os

qu
e.

 

• 
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 s

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r h
as

 b
ee

n 
im

pr
ov

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 re

ac
he

d 
th

e 
LA

A 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 6

2%
 a

t q
ua

rte
r 3

. 
• 

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
br

ea
st

fe
ed

in
g 

ra
te

s 
at

 6
-8

 w
ee

ks
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

 (f
in

al
 d

at
a 

no
t y

et
 a

va
ila

bl
e)

 

• 
H

ar
ro

w
 w

as
 a

 p
ilo

t a
ut

ho
rit

y 
fo

r t
he

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

M
is

s 
D

or
ot

hy
 

D
ot

 C
om

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

fo
r p

er
so

na
l s

af
et

y,
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 

th
e 

po
lic

e 
an

d 
fir

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rte
d 

by
 W

at
fo

rd
 F

oo
tb

al
l C

lu
b.

  T
hi

s 
re

so
ur

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ro
lle

d 
ou

t i
n 

al
l H

ar
ro

w
 p

rim
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 

• 
Th

e 
W

om
en

’s
 e

-s
af

et
y 

pr
oj

ec
t p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
in

te
rn

et
 s

af
et

y 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

am
on

gs
t M

us
lim

 w
om

en
 w

on
 ‘B

es
t W

om
en

’s
 p

ro
je

ct
’ i

n 
a 

re
ce

nt
 

G
O

L 
PV

E 
aw

ar
ds

 s
ch

em
e.

   

• 
Ex

er
ci

se
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 h
el

p 
re

du
ce

 o
be

si
ty

 a
nd

 th
e 

M
EN

D
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
or

ks
 w

ith
 s

ch
oo

l c
hi

ld
re

n 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 le
ve

ls
 o

f e
xe

rc
is

e 
an

d 
he

al
th

y 
ea

tin
g 

to
 re

du
ce

 o
be

si
ty

 a
nd

 h
el

p 
pr

ev
en

t t
he

 o
ns

et
 o

f c
hr

on
ic

 
di

se
as

e 
la

te
r i

n 
lif

e 

• 
An

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 1

2 
co

m
m

un
ity

 v
en

ue
s 

w
er

e 
la

un
ch

ed
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 

pe
op

le
 to

 re
po

rt 
H

at
e 

C
rim

e.
  S

in
ce

 th
e 

la
un

ch
, t

he
 n

um
be

r o
f 

re
po

rte
d 

in
ci

de
nc

es
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d.

 

32



 
5  H

SP
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e  
 In

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

8 
th

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 re
vi

se
d 

its
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
ch

an
gi

ng
 n

at
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t, 

th
e 

cl
os

er
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 re

qu
ire

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 o

f t
he

 2
00

7 
Pe

er
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

. 
 Th

e 
ai

m
 o

f t
he

 n
ew

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 w
as

 to
 m

ax
im

is
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

tra
te

gy
 p

rio
rit

ie
s,

 m
ee

t i
nd

iv
id

ua
l p

ar
tn

er
s’

 a
nd

 m
ul

ti–
pa

rtn
er

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

, p
ro

vi
de

 b
et

te
r v

al
ue

 fo
r m

on
ey

 a
nd

 s
tre

am
lin

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y.
   

 To
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 d
ea

l e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

qu
es

tio
ns

 a
tta

ch
ed

 to
 th

e 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 A
re

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t, 
th

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
a 

ve
hi

cl
e 

fo
r b

ro
ke

rin
g 

su
pp

or
tiv

e 
jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
is

su
es

 th
at

 c
ro

ss
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
na

l b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s 

in
 m

uc
h 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
w

ay
 a

s 
se

ve
ra

l o
f t

he
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t g

ro
up

s 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 o

pe
ra

te
. 

 Th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 b

oa
rd

 w
as

 e
xp

an
de

d 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
w

id
er

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
m

or
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
an

d 
tra

ns
pa

re
nt

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
ls

o 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

a 
m

or
e 

co
m

pl
ex

 a
nd

 d
em

an
di

ng
 a

ge
nd

a,
 a

nd
 w

as
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r h
av

in
g 

an
 o

ve
rs

ig
ht

 o
f 

is
su

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
re

fre
sh

ed
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
LA

A
.  

Th
e 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
w

as
 

re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

a 
sm

al
le

r g
ro

up
 m

ad
e 

up
 o

f t
he

 5
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

es
 o

f t
he

 P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t, 

H
ar

ro
w

 P
ol

ic
e,

 H
ar

ro
w

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

of
 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s,

 H
ar

ro
w

 in
 B

us
in

es
s 

an
d 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il.

   
 Th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

es
 g

ro
up

 is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r h
ol

di
ng

 th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t g

ro
up

s 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t i

nd
ic

at
or

s 
pl

us
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

sh
ar

ed
 a

ge
nd

a 
fo

r H
ar

ro
w

, d
el

iv
er

in
g 

jo
in

t 
ou

tc
om

es
 a

nd
 tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

na
l c

ha
ng

e.
 

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

ha
ve

 a
 k

ey
 ro

le
 a

s 
co

m
m

un
ity

 le
ad

er
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 im

po
rta

nt
 tw

o 
w

ay
 li

nk
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ou
r p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
.  

M
os

t m
em

be
rs

 a
lre

ad
y 

ha
ve

 w
el

l e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

ne
tw

or
ks

 o
f l

oc
al

 c
on

ta
ct

s 
to

 k
ee

p 
th

em
se

lv
es

 in
fo

rm
ed

 o
f l

oc
al

 is
su

es
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

lin
ks

 to
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 g

ro
up

s,
 li

nk
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

lo
ca

l e
le

ct
or

at
e 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

nd
 d

ay
-to

-d
ay

/fa
ce

 to
 fa

ce
 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
ity

. 
 Th

e 
H

S
P

 B
oa

rd
 is

 c
ha

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
le

ad
er

 o
f t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 B
oa

rd
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
de

pu
ty

 le
ad

er
 a

nd
 th

e 
op

po
si

tio
n 

le
ad

er
 

an
d 

de
pu

ty
 le

ad
er

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
m

em
be

rs
.  

Th
e 

ne
w

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
ls

o 
in

tro
du

ce
d 

th
e 

of
fic

ia
l i

nc
lu

si
on

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
Po

rtf
ol

io
 

H
ol

de
r m

os
t c

lo
se

ly
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 o

f e
ac

h 
m

an
ag

em
en

t g
ro

up
.  

 
 

33



 
6 

H
A

R
R

O
W

 
P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
 

B
O

A
R

D

H
A

R
R

O
W

 C
H

IE
F

 
E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
 

G
R

O
U

P

S
af

er
 H

ar
ro

w
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
an

d 
E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

A
du

lt 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l 

C
ar

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
oh

es
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up

G
re

en
er

 H
ar

ro
w

+ 
M

or
e

B
ei

ng
 H

ea
lth

y

S
ta

yi
ng

 S
af

e
+ 

M
or

e
C

ar
er

’s
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s

O
be

si
ty

 &
 P

hy
si

ca
l 

A
ct

iv
ity

M
ak

in
g 

a 
P

os
iti

ve
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

E
nj

oy
 a

nd
 A

ch
ie

ve

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

es
 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 

G
ro

up

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 a

nd
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

S
ec

to
r F

or
um

A
ch

ie
vi

ng
 E

co
no

m
ic

 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

H
ar

ro
w

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 B
oa

rd
T

he
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 is
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

in
g 

bo
dy

 o
f t

he
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
.  

It 
ac

ts
 a

s 
a 

fo
ru

m
 fo

r 
di

sc
us

si
on

 o
f s

tr
at

eg
ic

 is
su

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

, s
oc

ia
l a

nd
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l w
el

l b
ei

ng
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

’s
 re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

.

T
he

 B
oa

rd
 m

ee
ts

 n
ot

 le
ss

 th
an

 th
re

e 
tim

es
 a

 y
ea

r a
nd

 is
 m

ad
e 

up
 o

f 2
9 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 fr

om
  k

ey
 p

ub
lic

, p
riv

at
e,

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 u
m

br
el

la
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 a
ct

iv
e 

in
 H

ar
ro

w
. 

T
he

 B
oa

rd
 s

et
s 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
di

re
ct

io
n 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, a

nd
 

P
ro

vi
de

s 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

es
 in

 th
e 

pr
od

uc
tio

n,
 

re
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n,

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

 
T

he
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 is

 a
ls

o 
pi

vo
ta

l i
n 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
an

d 
th

e 
w

id
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
.

H
ar

ro
w

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
es

 (
H

C
E

)
T

he
 r

ol
e 

of
 th

e 
H

C
E

 is
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

lly
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

of
 th

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

s 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

e 
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

an
d 

th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t. 
 It

 d
oe

s 
th

is
 th

ro
ug

h 
co

or
di

na
tin

g 
an

d 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

fiv
e 

Th
em

at
ic

 M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

s.

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

of
 th

e 
H

C
E

 g
ro

up
 is

 m
ad

e 
up

 o
f s

en
io

r e
xe

cu
tiv

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
ke

y 
se

ct
or

s/
ag

en
ci

es
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h,

 a
ll 

of
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 re
pr

es
en

te
d 

on
 th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

.  
T

hi
s 

gr
ou

p 
is

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
ac

co
un

ta
bl

e 
to

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
.  

Th
is

 g
ro

up
 w

ill
 m

ee
t a

t l
ea

st
 6

x 
a 

yr
.

R
ef

er
en

ce
 G

ro
up

s
R

ef
er

en
ce

 g
ro

up
s 

ar
e 

se
lf 

go
ve

rn
in

g 
an

d 
ar

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
.  

T
he

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

R
ec

og
ni

se
s 

th
es

e 
gr

ou
ps

 a
s 

a 
so

ur
ce

 o
f e

xp
er

t
A

dv
ic

e 
on

 th
e 

in
te

re
st

s 
of

 O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
of

 th
e

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
ec

to
r.

  A
re

as
 c

ou
ld

In
cl

ud
e,

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 T

he
m

at
ic

 G
ro

up
s,

 th
e

M
an

ne
r o

f s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y,
 g

ap
s 

in
 p

ro
vi

si
on

, t
he

C
on

te
nt

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t a

nd
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 r

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
om

pa
ct

 a
nd

Th
e 

co
nt

en
t o

f t
he

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy

Th
em

at
ic

 M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

s
Th

es
e 

bo
di

es
 a

re
 ta

sk
ed

 w
ith

 c
oo

rd
in

at
in

g
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, 
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

S
C

S
 a

nd
 th

e 
LA

A
.  

Th
ey

 w
ill

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r,

 a
nd

 th
e 

w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

, a
ny

 D
el

iv
er

y 
gr

ou
ps

 th
at

 re
po

rt 
to

 th
em

 a
nd

 w
ill

 
ac

tiv
el

y 
m

on
ito

r 
an

d 
m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 th
at

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
.

D
el

iv
er

y 
G

ro
up

s
T

he
 ro

le
 o

f t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
gr

ou
ps

 is
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
of

 
th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
, a

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
S

C
S

 a
nd

 th
e 

LA
A

.  
T

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

pa
rti

cu
la

r g
ro

up
s 

M
ay

 c
om

e 
an

d 
go

 d
ep

en
di

ng
 

on
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
th

e 
th

em
at

ic
 g

ro
up

’s
 

V
ie

w
s 

as
 to

 th
e 

be
st

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r d
el

iv
er

y.

S
tr

uc
tu

re
 o

f t
he

 H
ar

ro
w

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

D
ru

gs
 &

 A
lc

oh
ol

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip

+ 
M

or
e

+ 
M

or
e

 34



 
7  

 Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

R
ef

re
sh

 –
 W

or
ki

ng
 T

og
et

he
r a

nd
 W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 Y

ou
 

 B
y 

20
20

, H
ar

ro
w

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 fo

r: 

 Th
e 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
e 

st
or

y 
of

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
re

a 
an

d 
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 th
e 

lo
ng

er
 te

rm
 a

m
bi

tio
n,

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
an

d 
ra

tio
na

le
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
fo

cu
s 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t (

LA
A

). 
  

 Th
e 

re
ne

go
tia

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
LA

A
 in

 2
00

8 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

e 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 to
 re

-lo
ok

 a
t H

ar
ro

w
’s

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

an
d 

re
vi

se
 th

e 
vi

si
on

 
to

 s
om

et
hi

ng
 th

at
 w

as
 m

or
e 

di
st

in
ct

iv
e 

to
 H

ar
ro

w
.  

Th
e 

re
fre

sh
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
n 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 to

 a
lig

n 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

ith
 th

e 
ne

w
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 A
re

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t (
C

A
A

). 
  

 Th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 re

fre
sh

in
g 

th
e 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
n 

w
er

e:
 

 
 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
di

st
in

ct
 H

ar
ro

w
 v

is
io

n 
th

at
 is

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 a

ll 
pu

bl
ic

 s
ec

to
rs

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

nd
 c

oh
er

en
t m

es
sa

ge
 to

 
bu

ild
 a

 c
o-

or
di

na
te

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 d
el

iv
er

y 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f n

ee
d 

ag
ai

ns
t o

ur
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

ne
w

 C
A

A
 

 
 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
of

 th
e 

ov
er

ar
ch

in
g 

pl
an

 b
y 

ke
y 

pa
rtn

er
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 w
ho

 w
er

e 
no

t i
nv

ol
ve

d 
in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 
cu

rre
nt

 p
la

n 
 

 
R

ef
le

ct
in

g 
an

d 
al

ig
ni

ng
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

ith
 th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
an

d 
ou

tc
om

es
 o

f t
he

 J
oi

nt
 A

re
a 

N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t, 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

an
d 

th
e 

re
vi

se
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
 

 
In

te
gr

at
ed

 a
nd

 c
o-

or
di

na
te

d 
qu

al
ity

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 m

an
y 

of
 w

hi
ch

 fo
cu

s 
on

 p
re

ve
nt

in
g 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
fro

m
 a

ris
in

g,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 fo
r 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 g

ro
up

s,
 a

nd
 a

ll 
of

 w
hi

ch
 p

ut
 u

se
rs

 in
 c

on
tro

l, 
of

fe
rin

g 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 c
ho

ic
e 

 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l, 

ec
on

om
ic

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ilit
y,

 b
ec

au
se

 w
e 

ac
tiv

el
y 

m
an

ag
e 

ou
r i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
nd

 h
av

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

jo
bs

, h
om

es
, e

du
ca

tio
n,

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
, t

ra
ns

po
rt 

an
d 

ot
he

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
al

l c
iti

ze
ns

 
ne

ed
 

 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f l
ife

, b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s,

 e
m

po
w

er
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 v
oi

ce
, p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
re

sp
ec

t a
nd

 b
ei

ng
 th

e 
sa

fe
st

 
bo

ro
ug

h 
in

 L
on

do
n.

 

35



 
8 Th

e 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
e 

re
fre

sh
ed

 S
tra

te
gy

 in
vo

lv
ed

: 
 

 
In

te
rv

ie
w

in
g 

50
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t o
pi

ni
on

 fo
rm

er
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

rts
 to

 h
el

p 
co

ns
tru

ct
 a

 p
ic

tu
re

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 n

ow
 a

nd
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 Y
ou

th
 C

ou
nc

il 
 

 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
R

es
id

en
ts

’ P
an

el
 to

 o
bt

ai
n 

vi
ew

s 
on

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 fo
cu

se
s 

of
 H

ar
ro

w
   

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
ou

tc
om

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
co

re
 s

tra
te

gy
 c

om
m

itm
en

ts
, t

he
 H

ou
si

ng
 

S
tra

te
gy

, J
oi

nt
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t, 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
la

n,
 D

ra
ft 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

S
tra

te
gy

, C
om

m
un

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
tra

te
gy

, S
tra

te
gi

c 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t, 
P

C
T 

P
la

n 
 

 
Tw

o 
m

in
i s

um
m

its
 h

el
d 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
8 

 Th
e 

fin
al

 s
tra

te
gy

 w
as

 a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Fu
ll 

C
ou

nc
il 

on
 A

pr
il 

2nd
 2

00
9.

 
 Th

er
e 

ar
e 

si
x 

th
em

es
 w

ith
in

 th
is

 s
tra

te
gy

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 th

e 
vi

si
on

 fo
r t

he
 b

or
ou

gh
 to

 2
02

0.
  E

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
th

em
ed

 c
ha

pt
er

s 
ha

s 
a 

vi
si

on
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

.  
Th

e 
ch

ap
te

r t
he

m
es

 a
re

: 
 

 
E

co
no

m
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

H
ar

ro
w

   
 

E
ve

ry
 H

ar
ro

w
 C

hi
ld

 
 

H
ea

lth
, W

el
lb

ei
ng

 a
nd

 In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 
 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
H

ar
ro

w
’s

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

 
H

ar
ro

w
’s

 C
ul

tu
re

, C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 Id
en

tit
y 

 
Th

e 
Fu

tu
re

 o
f P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
D

em
oc

ra
cy

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
  

  R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 R
ef

re
sh

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t  
 Th

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
d 

a 
ne

w
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t (
LA

A
) f

or
 H

ar
ro

w
 in

 J
un

e 
20

08
, w

hi
ch

 re
fle

ct
ed

 p
rio

rit
y 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
H

ar
ro

w
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

im
pr

ov
ed

 o
ve

r t
he

 n
ex

t t
hr

ee
 y

ea
rs

. 
 A

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t w

as
 s

ig
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

Se
cr

et
ar

y 
of

 S
ta

te
 in

 J
un

e,
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f m
ea

su
re

s 
ha

d 
no

t b
ee

n 
ag

re
ed

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
un

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 d

at
a 

to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

ba
se

lin
e 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
s.

  I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 o
ve

r t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
7 

to
 8

 m
on

th
s,

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t r

ed
ef

in
ed

 th
e 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 a
nd

 d
ef

in
iti

on
s 

of
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f t
he

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 fr

om
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l i
nd

ic
at

or
 s

et
.  

To
 b

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 fo

r r
ew

ar
d 

gr
an

t a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

 L
A

A
 p

er
io

d,
 a

ll 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 th
at

 w
er

e 
no

t f
in

al
is

ed
 a

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 s
ig

n 
of

f i
n 

20
08

 w
er

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 b
e 

ag
re

ed
 a

nd
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 to
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 o
f L

on
do

n 
by

 th
e 

1st
 A

pr
il 

20
09

.  
 

 

36



 
9 Th

e 
H

S
P

 B
oa

rd
 re

ne
go

tia
te

d 
22

 o
f t

he
 3

4 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

 T
he

 n
ew

ly
 re

fre
sh

ed
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t n
ow

 c
on

si
st

s 
of

 3
2 

in
di

ca
to

rs
, w

hi
ch

 a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r r

ew
ar

d 
an

d 
20

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 in

 o
ur

 lo
ca

l s
ec

tio
n,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r r
ew

ar
d 

fu
nd

in
g.

 
 Pl

ac
e 

Su
rv

ey
 R

es
ul

ts
 

 Th
e 

P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y 
is

 a
 m

an
da

to
ry

 s
ur

ve
y 

th
at

 is
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
ev

er
y 

tw
o 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
ha

s 
re

pl
ac

ed
 th

e 
fo

rm
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 L

ife
 S

ur
ve

y.
  T

he
 

P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y 
w

as
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
17

th
 O

ct
ob

er
 a

nd
 1

9th
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8.

  3
,6

00
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

s 
w

er
e 

se
nt

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
es

 d
ra

w
n 

at
 ra

nd
om

 fr
om

 th
e 

P
os

t O
ffi

ce
 A

dd
re

ss
 F

ile
.  

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y 
fo

llo
w

s 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 L

ife
 S

ur
ve

ys
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

th
e 

B
V

PI
 

su
rv

ey
s 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
in

 2
00

6/
07

 a
nd

 2
00

3/
04

, t
he

 re
su

lts
 c

an
no

t b
e 

di
re

ct
ly

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 a

ny
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

su
rv

ey
.  

Th
is

 is
 d

ue
 to

 v
ar

yi
ng

 
sa

m
pl

e 
si

ze
s,

 m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

, a
nd

 th
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

f t
he

 s
ur

ve
ys

 a
nd

 a
ls

o 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 ti
m

es
 o

f t
he

 y
ea

r a
t w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 w
er

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d.

 
 C

om
pa

ris
on

s 
of

 H
ar

ro
w

 v
er

su
s 

O
ut

er
 L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
’s

 

A
B

C
D

E

Ha
rro

w

Ou
te

r L
on

do
n 

Bo
ro

ug
hs

67
%

40
%

29
%

75
%

25
%

68
%

35
%

24
%

76
%

28
%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

70
%

80
%

Pl
ac

e 
Su

rv
ey

 Q
ue

st
io

ns

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

Pl
ac

e 
Su

rv
ey

 2
00

8-
09

Ha
rro

w
Ou

te
r L

on
do

n 
Bo

ro
ug

hs

 

A
 

68
%

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
fe

lt 
th

at
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
ar

ea
 s

af
er

.  
Th

is
 re

su
lt 

is
 

si
m

ila
r t

o 
th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 re

si
de

nt
s 

fro
m

 O
ut

er
 L

on
do

n 
bo

ro
ug

hs
 a

t 6
7%

  
 B

 
35

%
 fe

lt 
th

at
 lo

ca
l p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

e 
in

te
re

st
s 

of
 lo

ca
l r

es
id

en
ts

 to
 s

om
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

r a
 g

re
at

 
de

al
.  

Th
is

 is
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
40

%
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
O

ut
er

 L
on

do
n 

bo
ro

ug
hs

  
 C

 
24

%
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

fe
lt 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
ve

ry
 w

el
l i

nf
or

m
ed

 o
r 

fa
irl

y 
w

el
l i

nf
or

m
ed

 o
n 

ho
w

 to
 g

et
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 lo
ca

l 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g.
  T

hi
s 

co
m

pa
re

s 
to

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 

29
%

 fo
r O

ut
er

 L
on

do
n 

Bo
ro

ug
hs

  
 D

 
76

%
 o

f r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 fe
lt 

th
at

 th
ei

r l
oc

al
 a

re
a 

is
 a

 
pl

ac
e 

w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
fro

m
 d

iff
er

en
t b

ac
kg

ro
un

ds
 g

et
 

on
 w

el
l t

og
et

he
r, 

in
 c

om
pa

ris
on

 to
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 
75

%
 in

 O
ut

er
 L

on
do

n 
bo

ro
ug

hs
 

 E 
28

%
 o

f r
es

po
nd

en
ts

 fe
lt 

th
at

 o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

 
ar

e 
ab

le
 to

 g
et

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

th
ey

 n
ee

d 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 li

ve
 a

t h
om

e 
fo

r a
s 

lo
ng

 a
s 

th
ey

 w
an

t 
to

, w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 s

up
po

rt 
fro

m
 p

ub
lic

, p
riv

at
e 

or
 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

Th
is

 is
 h

ig
he

r s
co

re
 th

an
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 2
5%

 fo
r O

ut
er

 L
on

do
n 

Bo
ro

ug
hs

  
 

37



 
10

 .  
O

th
er

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 fe

at
ur

es
 o

f t
he

 P
la

ce
 S

ur
ve

y 
re

su
lts

 a
re

: 
 

 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

pa
ve

m
en

t r
ep

ai
rs

 w
er

e 
th

e 
to

p 
pr

io
rit

y 
fo

r a
re

as
 in

 n
ee

d 
of

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t l

oc
al

ly
 a

nd
 ro

ad
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
w

as
 s

ec
on

d 
 

Th
e 

le
ve

l o
f c

rim
e,

 c
le

an
 s

tre
et

s 
an

d 
he

al
th

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

er
e 

th
e 

to
p 

3 
th

in
gs

 w
hi

ch
 p

eo
pl

e 
sa

y 
ar

e 
th

e 
m

os
t i

m
po

rta
nt

 in
 m

ak
in

g 
so

m
ew

he
re

 a
 g

oo
d 

pl
ac

e 
to

 li
ve

.  
 

 Jo
in

t A
na

ly
tic

al
 G

ro
up

 (J
A

G
) 

 Th
e 

Jo
in

t A
na

ly
tic

al
 G

ro
up

 w
as

 in
iti

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
es

 G
ro

up
 in

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
00

8.
  T

he
 J

A
G

 e
nc

om
pa

ss
es

 a
ll 

ag
en

ci
es

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

H
S

P
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pa
rtn

er
s’

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

re
 g

ro
un

de
d 

in
 s

ou
nd

 in
te

llig
en

ce
. 

 Th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 J
A

G
 a

re
: 

 
 

To
 e

na
bl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 b
e 

tra
ns

la
te

d 
in

to
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

nd
 u

se
d 

to
 in

fo
rm

 p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

pr
ac

tic
e,

 d
ec

is
io

n-
m

ak
in

g 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

 
To

 re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
se

 s
pe

ci
fic

 is
su

es
 a

ro
un

d 
w

hi
ch

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 la

ck
 o

f k
no

w
le

dg
e 

or
 w

hi
ch

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

be
tte

r u
nd

er
st

oo
d 

 
To

 p
ro

vi
de

 re
lia

bl
e 

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 d

at
a 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 k

no
w

n 
to

 b
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

ed
 

 
To

 d
ev

el
op

 d
at

a 
sh

ar
in

g 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 v

al
ue

 is
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fro
m

 o
th

er
 d

at
a 

so
ur

ce
s 

w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

 
To

 m
ov

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 m

or
e 

jo
in

ed
 u

p 
pu

bl
ic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
 

To
 ta

ke
 a

 h
ig

h 
le

ve
l a

nd
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

vi
ew

 o
f p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 tr

en
ds

 
 

To
 c

re
at

e 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y 

ga
in

s 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 s

ha
re

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 b

ei
ng

 b
et

te
r i

nf
or

m
ed

 
 A

s 
a 

vi
rtu

al
 te

am
, J

A
G

 m
em

be
rs

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
ba

se
d 

in
 th

ei
r e

xi
st

in
g 

w
or

kp
la

ce
s.

  A
ll 

w
or

k 
re

qu
es

ts
 to

 th
e 

JA
G

 a
re

 p
ut

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
es

 G
ro

up
.  

W
or

k 
re

qu
es

ts
 a

re
 th

en
 s

en
t t

o 
th

e 
JA

G
 F

ut
ur

es
 G

ro
up

 to
 e

st
im

at
e 

th
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f e

ac
h 

re
qu

es
t. 

 Th
e 

pr
od

uc
ts

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
by

 th
e 

gr
ou

p 
w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
da

ta
 a

nd
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
/o

r r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 o
n 

w
ha

t n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

do
ne

. T
he

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

G
ro

up
 is

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 fo
r c

on
si

de
rin

g 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

nd
 a

ct
in

g 
on

 th
es

e.
 

 Th
e 

gr
ou

p 
re

ce
nt

ly
 fi

na
lis

ed
 th

ei
r f

irs
t J

A
G

 p
ro

du
ct

, t
he

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f c

rim
e 

an
d 

di
so

rd
er

 a
nd

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
an

al
ys

in
g 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 e

co
no

m
ic

 tr
en

ds
 a

nd
 h

ow
 th

ey
’re

 im
pa

ct
in

g 
on

 c
oh

es
io

n,
 c

rim
e,

 A
nt

i S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

, d
ep

riv
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
ec

on
om

y.
  T

he
 a

na
ly

si
s 

w
ill 

be
 u

se
d 

to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
pl

ac
e 

sh
ap

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

an
d 

su
gg

es
t p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

ad
dr

es
si

ng
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 re

ce
ss

io
n 

lo
ca

lly
. .

 

38



 
11LO

C
A

L 
A

R
EA

 A
G

R
EE

M
EN

T 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

20
08

/0
9  

 

R
ef

 
  

M
ea

su
re

 
20

08
/0

9 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

C
om

m
en

ts
 

  
  

  
 

 
  

A
du

lt 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

  
  

  
 

 
  

N
I 1

30
 

LA
A 

So
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

cl
ie

nt
s 

Se
lf 

D
ire

ct
ed

 S
up

po
rt 

☺
 

 
 

N
I 1

36
 

LA
A 

Pe
op

le
 s

up
po

rte
d 

to
 li

ve
 in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 

☺
 

 
 

N
I 1

35
 

LA
A 

C
ar

er
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

r r
ev

ie
w

 
☺
 

 
 

N
I 1

34
 

LA
A 

N
um

be
r o

f e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

be
d 

da
ys

 p
er

 h
ea

d 
of

 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
 

 
 

N
I 4

0 
LA

A 
D

ru
g 

us
er

s 
in

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
tre

at
m

en
t 

☺
 

 
 

N
I 1

23
 

LA
A 

(L
oc

al
 

In
di

ca
to

r) 
16

+ 
cu

rr
en

t s
m

ok
in

g 
ra

te
 p

re
va

le
nc

e 
 

 
 

N
I 1

49
 

LA
A 

Ad
ul

ts
 in

 c
on

ta
ct

 w
ith

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
 

 
 

N
I 3

9 
LA

A 
Al

co
ho

l h
ar

m
 re

la
te

d 
ho

sp
ita

l a
dm

is
si

on
 ra

te
s 

 
 

  

  
LA

A 
(o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h)
 

N
um

be
r o

f 4
 w

ee
k 

sm
ok

in
g 

qu
itt

er
s 

w
ho

 a
tte

nd
ed

 
th

e 
N

H
S 

sm
ok

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

 
 

Ta
rg

et
 =

 L
D

P 
pl

us
 a

n 
ex

tra
 

50
 q

ui
tte

rs
 p

er
 y

ea
r (

06
/0

7 
= 

12
52

, 0
7/

08
 =

 1
26

0,
 0

8/
09

 =
 

12
70

) 

  
LA

A 
(o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h)
 

N
um

be
r o

f h
om

es
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

 th
at

 s
ig

n 
up

 to
 b

e 
sm

ok
e 

fre
e 

☺
 

 
  

  
  

  
 

 
  

   
  

  
 

 
  

N
I 1

26
 

LA
A 

   
Ea

rly
 a

cc
es

s 
fo

r w
om

en
 to

 m
at

er
ni

ty
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

 
 

  
N

I 5
3a

 
LA

A 
  

Pr
ev

al
en

ce
 o

f b
re

as
tfe

ed
in

g 
at

 6
-8

 w
ee

ks
 fr

om
 b

irt
h 

 
 

  
N

I 5
3b

 
LA

A 
  

C
ov

er
ag

e 
of

 b
re

as
tfe

ed
in

g 
at

 6
-8

 w
ee

ks
 

☺
 

 
  

N
I 5

7 
LA

A 
  

5-
16

 y
ea

r o
ld

s 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tin

g 
in

 P
E 

an
d 

sp
or

t 2
 o

r 3
 

ho
ur

s 

.
 

Ba
se

lin
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

20
08

/0
9,

 n
o 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 d

at
a 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 a
sc

er
ta

in
 

di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 tr
av

el
 

39



 
12N

I 5
1 

LA
A 

  
Pr

og
re

ss
 to

w
ar

ds
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 C

A
M

H
 s

er
vi

ce
 

☺
 

 
  

N
I 1

17
 

LA
A 

  
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ag
ed

 1
6-

18
 w

ho
 a

re
 

N
EE

T 

☺
 

 
N

EE
T'

s 
re

m
ai

n 
lo

w
 in

 
H

ar
ro

w
, b

ut
 h

as
 ri

se
n 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 in
 c

om
pa

ris
on

 to
 la

st
 

ye
ar

. I
t w

as
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

th
at

 
th

e 
nu

m
be

rs
 o

f N
EE

T'
s 

w
ou

ld
 ri

se
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

re
ce

ss
io

n 
cr

ea
tin

g 
le

ss
 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

fo
r y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 to
 e

nt
er

 th
e 

la
bo

ur
 

m
ar

ke
t a

nd
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f H

ar
ro

w
's

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
al

le
r P

ro
je

ct
.  

N
I 1

08
 

LA
A 

(lo
ca

l 
in

di
ca

to
r)

 
At

ta
in

m
en

t f
or

 B
la

ck
 a

nd
 m

in
or

ity
 e

th
ni

c 
gr

ou
ps

 
 

 
  

N
I 8

8 
LA

A 
  

N
um

be
r o

f e
xt

en
de

d 
sc

ho
ol

s 

.
 

 
H

ar
ro

w
 is

 in
 a

 c
on

fid
en

t 
po

si
tio

n 
of

 h
av

in
g 

al
l 

sc
ho

ol
s 

fu
lly

 e
xt

en
de

d 
by

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

01
0.

  

N
I 7

0 
LA

A 
(lo

ca
l 

in
di

ca
to

r)
 

H
os

pi
ta

l a
dm

is
si

on
s 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
un

in
te

nt
io

na
l i

nj
ur

ie
s 
 

 
  

N
I 6

3 
LA

A 
Lo

ng
 te

rm
 s

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 C

LA
 (2

.5
 y

ea
rs

) 

☺
 

 
Th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r t

he
 s

ta
bi

lit
y 

in
 p

la
ce

m
en

t f
or

 lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

ov
er

 th
e 

pa
st

 1
2 

m
on

th
s.

 A
lth

ou
gh

 w
e 

ha
ve

 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 o

ur
 L

AA
 ta

rg
et

 w
e 

ar
e 

ju
st

 u
nd

er
 1

2%
 le

ss
 

th
an

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l t

ar
ge

t o
f 

80
%

. C
on

te
xt

: L
AA

 ta
rg

et
 

ex
ce

ed
ed

 in
 fi

rs
t y

ea
r 

de
sp

ite
 h

ig
h 

ra
te

 o
f 

ad
op

tio
ns

 w
hi

ch
 le

av
es

 a
 

le
ss

 s
ta

bl
e 

co
ho

rt.
  

N
I 1

15
 

LA
A 

(lo
ca

l 
in

di
ca

to
r)

 
R

ed
uc

e 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

m
is

us
e 

by
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

☺
 

 
  

  
LA

A 
- o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h 
Br

ea
st

 fe
ed

in
g 

in
iti

at
io

n 
ra

te
s 

 
 

  

40



 
13  

LA
A 

- o
ld

 s
tre

tc
h 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
er

m
an

en
t e

xc
lu

si
on

s 
/
 

 
  

  
LA

A 
- o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f f

ix
ed

 te
rm

 e
xc

lu
si

on
s 

/
 

 
  

  
LA

A 
- o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t 2

5%
 w

or
st

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
s 

(p
rim

ar
y)

 
 

 
  

  
LA

A 
- o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t 2

5%
 w

or
st

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
s 

(s
ec

on
da

ry
) 

 
 

  
  

LA
A 

- o
ld

 s
tre

tc
h 

Av
er

ag
e 

po
in

ts
 s

co
re

 p
er

 p
up

il 
at

 le
ve

l 2
 a

t a
ge

 1
6 

☺
 

 
  

  
  

  
 

 
  

Lo
ca

l E
co

no
m

y 
an

d 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 
  

  
  

 
 

  
N

I 1
52

 
LA

A 
W

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 p

eo
pl

e 
on

 o
ut

 o
f w

or
k 

be
ne

fit
s 

☺
 

 
  

N
I 1

46
 

LA
A 

Ad
ul

ts
 w

ith
 le

ar
ni

ng
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
in

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
.
 

 
  

  
LA

A 
- o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h 
N

um
be

r o
f n

ew
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
☺
 

 
  

N
I 1

86
 

LA
A 

Pe
r c

ap
ita

 C
O

2 
em

is
si

on
s 

in
 th

e 
LA

 a
re

a 
☺
 

 
  

N
I 1

92
 

LA
A 

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 re
cy

cl
ed

 a
nd

 c
om

po
st

ed
 

☺
 

 
  

N
I 1

97
 

LA
A 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 lo
ca

l b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 - 
ac

tiv
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

☺
 

 
  

N
I 1

98
 

LA
A 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
tra

ve
lin

g 
to

 s
ch

oo
l -

 u
su

al
 m

od
e 

of
 tr

av
el

 
.
 

 
R

ev
is

ed
 b

as
el

in
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

20
08

/0
9 

N
I 1

95
a 

LA
A 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 c
le

an
lin

es
s 

- l
itt

er
 

☺
 

 
  

N
I 1

95
b 

LA
A 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 c
le

an
lin

es
s 

- d
et

rit
us

 
☺
 

 
  

N
I 1

95
c 

LA
A 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 c
le

an
lin

es
s 

- g
ra

ffi
ti 

☺
 

 
  

N
I 1

95
d 

LA
A 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 c
le

an
lin

es
s 

- f
ly

 p
os

tin
g 

☺
 

 
  

N
I 1

55
 

LA
A 

N
um

be
r o

f a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 (g

ro
ss

) 
☺
 

 
  

  
  

  
 

 
  

Sa
fe

r H
ar

ro
w

 
  

  
  

 
 

  
N

I 1
7 

LA
A 

Pe
rc

ep
tio

ns
 o

f a
nt

i s
oc

ia
l b

eh
av

io
ur

 
.
 

 
  

N
I 3

2 
LA

A 
R

ep
ea

t i
nc

id
en

ts
 o

f d
om

es
tic

 v
io

le
nc

e 
.
 

 
  

N
I 3

5 
LA

A 
Bu

ild
in

g 
re

si
lie

nc
e 

to
 v

io
le

nt
 e

xt
re

m
is

m
 

☺
 

 
  

N
I 4

0 
LA

A 
D

ru
g 

us
er

s 
in

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
tre

at
m

en
t 

☺
 

 
  

41



 
14N

I 1
15

 
LA

A 
Su

bs
ta

nc
e 

m
is

us
e 

by
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

☺
 

 
  

  
LA

A 
- o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h 
N

um
be

r o
f r

es
id

en
tia

l b
ur

gl
ar

ie
s 

w
he

re
 v

ic
tim

 is
 o

ve
r 

75
 y

ea
rs

 
☺
 

 
  

  
LA

A 
- o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 n

on
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l b
ur

gl
ar

y 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

/
 

 
  

  
LA

A 
- o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ho

 c
on

si
de

r A
SB

 to
 b

e 
a 

'fa
irl

y'
 o

r '
ve

ry
 b

ig
' p

ro
bl

em
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

 
☺
 

 

  
  

LA
A 

- o
ld

 s
tre

tc
h 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 a
du

lts
 in

 fe
ar

 o
f b

ei
ng

 a
 v

ic
tim

 o
f c

rim
e 

.
 

 
  

  
  

  
 

 
  

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

oh
es

io
n 

  
  

  
 

 
  

N
I 1

 
LA

A 
  

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

fro
m

 d
iff

er
en

t b
ac

kg
ro

un
ds

 
w

ho
 g

et
 o

n 
w

el
l t

og
et

he
r  

.
 

 

  
N

I 6
 

LA
A 

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tio
n 

in
 re

gu
la

r v
ol

un
te

er
in

g 
.
 

 
  

N
I 7

 
LA

A 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 a
 th

riv
in

g 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r 

.
 

 

Ba
se

lin
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

20
08

/0
9.

  H
is

to
ric

al
 d

at
a 

is
 

no
t a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 a
 

di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 tr
av

el
 

N
I 8

 
LA

A 
Ad

ul
t p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 s

po
rt 

.
 

 
Ba

se
lin

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
20

08
/0

9 
  

N
I 1

1 
LA

A 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

ar
ts

 

.
 

 

Ba
se

lin
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

20
08

/0
9.

  H
is

to
ric

al
 d

at
a 

is
 

no
t a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 a
 

di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 tr
av

el
 

N
I 1

3 
LA

A 
M

ig
ra

nt
s'

 E
ng

lis
h 

la
ng

ua
ge

 s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 

.
 

 

Ba
se

lin
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

20
08

/0
9.

  H
is

to
ric

al
 d

at
a 

is
 

no
t a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 a
 

di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 tr
av

el
 

  
LA

A 
- o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h 
N

um
be

r o
f a

du
lts

 v
ol

un
te

er
in

g 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

 i)
 n

um
be

r o
f 

so
ci

al
ly

 e
xc

lu
de

d 
☺
 

 

  

  
LA

A 
- o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h 
N

um
be

r o
f a

du
lts

 v
ol

un
te

er
in

g 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

 ii
) n

um
be

r 
of

 o
th

er
 a

du
lts

 
☺
 

 
 

  
LA

A 
- o

ld
 s

tre
tc

h 
Pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 a

du
lts

 w
ho

 s
ay

 th
at

 p
eo

pl
e 

fro
m

 
di

ffe
re

nt
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

ds
 g

et
 o

n 
w

el
l t

og
et

he
r 

/
 

 

  
  

42



 
15O

ld
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 v
er

su
s 

re
w

ar
d 

gr
an

t  
 Ta

rg
et

  
W

ith
ou

t 
R

ew
ar

d 
pr

ed
ic

tio
n 

W
ith

 
R

ew
ar

d 
Ta

rg
et

 Q
4 

La
te

st
 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
D

at
a 

20
08

/0
9 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 

 
%

ag
e 

of
 

ta
rg

et
 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 

En
tit

le
m

en
t 

G
ra

nt
 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
Po

te
nt

ia
l R

ew
ar

d 
G

ra
nt

 
A

ch
ie

ve
d 

– 
ba

se
d 

on
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 to
 d

at
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
um

be
r o

f r
es

id
en

tia
l b

ur
gl

ar
ie

s 
w

he
re

 v
ic

tim
 is

 o
ve

r 7
5 

ye
ar

s 
29

7
18

0
16

4
  

11
3.

68
%

10
0.

00
%

£5
28

,1
31

.2
5

£5
28

,1
31

.2
5

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f n

on
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l b

ur
gl

ar
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

72
6

60
1

73
1

  
-4

.0
0%

0.
00

%
£5

28
,1

31
.2

5
£0

.0
0

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 a

du
lts

 s
ay

in
g 

th
ey

 
ar

e 
in

 fe
ar

 o
f b

ei
ng

 a
 v

ic
tim

 o
f 

cr
im

e 
40

%
35

.6
7%

37
.6

6%
  

54
.0

4%
0.

00
%

£5
28

,1
31

.2
5

£0
.0

0

Fi
na

l r
es

ul
ts

 
du

e 
20

09
/1

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
%

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ho

 c
on

si
de

r s
ui

te
 

of
 A

SB
 a

s 
a 

'fa
irl

y'
 o

r '
ve

ry
 b

ig
' 

pr
ob

le
m

 
48

.9
0%

41
.9

0%
34

.8
8%

  
20

0.
29

%
10

0.
00

%
£5

28
,1

31
.2

5
£5

28
,1

31
.2

5

Fi
na

l r
es

ul
ts

 
du

e 
20

09
/1

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

R
at

es
 o

f e
xc

lu
si

ve
 b

re
as

tfe
ed

in
g 

at
 

6 
w

ee
ks

 
36

%
39

%
An

nu
al

 
Ta

rg
et

  
  

  
£3

96
,0

98
.4

3
  

A
w

ai
tin

g 
re

su
lts

 fr
om

 
PC

T 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
B

re
as

tfe
ed

in
g 

in
iti

at
io

n 
ra

te
s 

68
.0

0%
69

.5
%

81
%

*
  

11
3.

04
%

10
0.

00
%

£1
32

,0
32

.8
1

£1
32

,0
32

.8
1

* Q
2 

da
ta

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 p

er
m

an
en

t e
xc

lu
si

on
s 

42
27

57
  

-1
00

.0
0%

0.
00

%
£7

5,
00

0.
00

£0
.0

0
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 fi
xe

d 
te

rm
 e

xc
lu

si
on

s 
10

85
96

4
12

67
  

-1
50

.4
1%

0.
00

%
£1

21
,0

00
.0

0
£0

.0
0

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t 2

5%
 w

or
st

 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
sc

ho
ol

s 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

 L
A

 
ar

ea
 w

ith
 re

ga
rd

 to
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t 

pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

6.
1%

6.
0%

6.
8%

  
-7

00
.0

0%
0.

00
%

£3
3,

36
0.

00
£0

.0
0

A
w

ai
tin

g 
fin

al
 y

ea
r 

re
su

lts
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t 2
5%

 w
or

st
 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
s 

in
 H

ar
ro

w
 L

A
 

ar
ea

 w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 to

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

6.
3%

6.
2%

7.
7%

  
-1

40
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
£8

4,
24

0.
00

£0
.0

0

A
w

ai
tin

g 
fin

al
 y

ea
r 

re
su

lts
 

43



 
16 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

ve
ra

ge
 p

oi
nt

s 
sc

or
e 

pe
r p

up
il 

at
 

le
ve

l 2
 a

t a
ge

 1
6 

38
2

38
8

39
2.

1
  

16
8.

33
%

10
0.

00
%

£5
28

,1
31

.2
5

£5
28

,1
31

.2
5

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
um

be
r o

f h
om

es
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

 th
at

 
si

gn
 u

p 
to

 b
e 

sm
ok

e 
fr

ee
 

0
30

00
31

45
  

10
4.

83
%

10
0.

00
%

£2
64

,0
65

.6
2

£2
64

,0
65

.6
2

Pr
ov

is
io

na
l 

re
su

lt 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

N
um

be
r o

f 4
-w

ee
k 

sm
ok

in
g 

qu
itt

er
s 

w
ho

 a
tte

nd
ed

 th
e 

N
H

S 
sm

ok
in

g 
se

rv
ic

e 
pe

r 1
00

,0
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

10
50

71
0

95
3

  
28

.5
3%

0.
00

%
£2

64
,0

65
.6

2
£0

.0
0

 Ba
se

d 
on

 
Q

2 
da

ta
  

 Fi
na

l r
es

ul
t 

du
e 

20
09

/1
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 a
du

lts
 w

ho
 s

ay
 th

at
 

pe
op

le
 fr

om
 d

iff
er

en
t b

ac
kg

ro
un

ds
 

ge
t o

n 
w

el
l i

n 
th

ei
r n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
55

%
61

%
48

%
  

-1
16

.6
7%

0.
00

%
£5

28
,1

31
.2

5
£0

.0
0

Fi
na

l r
es

ul
t 

du
e 

20
09

/1
0 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
um

be
r o

f a
du

lts
 v

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

in
 

H
ar

ro
w

 a
) n

um
be

rs
 o

f s
oc

ia
lly

 
ex

cl
ud

ed
 a

du
lt 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
 in

 
H

ar
ro

w
 

38
30

0
96

9
  

35
5.

34
%

10
0.

00
%

£2
64

,0
65

.6
2

£2
64

,0
65

.6
2

Fi
na

l r
es

ul
t 

du
e 

20
09

/1
0 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

N
um

be
r o

f a
du

lts
 v

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

in
 

H
ar

ro
w

 b
) n

um
be

rs
 o

f o
th

er
 a

du
lts

 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
 

14
8

12
00

68
5

  
51

.0
5%

0.
00

%
£2

64
,0

65
.6

2
£0

.0
0

Fi
na

l r
es

ul
t 

du
e 

20
09

/1
0 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
%

 o
f y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ag
ed

 1
6-

18
 w

ho
 

ar
e 

N
EE

T 
5.

10
%

4.
60

%
3.

80
%

  
26

0.
00

%
10

0.
00

%
£7

42
,6

62
.5

0
£7

42
,6

62
.5

0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
um

be
r o

f b
us

in
es

se
s 

(n
ew

 a
nd

 
ex

is
tin

g)
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 M
en

to
rin

g 
pa

ck
ag

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
en

to
rin

g,
 c

on
su

lta
nc

y,
 

di
ag

no
st

ic
s 

an
d 

ca
se

 s
tu

di
es

 
15

6
24

9
22

9
  

78
.4

9%
78

.4
9%

£5
28

,1
31

.2
5

£4
14

,5
54

.6
4

R
ew

ar
d 

gr
an

t t
o 

be
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

20
10

/1
1 

To
ta

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
£6

,3
37

,5
74

.9
7

£3
,4

01
,7

74
.9

4
 

44



 
17  M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 
G

R
O

U
P 

R
EP

O
R

TS
 

 A
du

lt 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t g

ro
up

 
  Th

e 
Ad

ul
t H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t g

ro
up

 is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r o
ve

rs
ee

in
g 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

a 
fo

ru
m

 fo
r d

is
cu

ss
in

g 
an

d 
ag

re
ei

ng
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 k

ey
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r H

ar
ro

w
. T

he
 g

ro
up

 h
as

 a
 

w
id

e 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
w

ith
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y,
 P

C
T,

 P
ol

ic
e,

 A
ge

 C
on

ce
rn

, N
or

th
 W

es
t L

on
do

n 
H

os
pi

ta
ls

 T
ru

st
, 

M
E

N
C

A
P

, J
ob

 C
en

tre
 P

lu
s,

 N
H

S
 B

re
nt

, H
A

D
 a

nd
 H

ar
ro

w
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s.
  

 A
ct

iv
ity

 in
 2

00
8/

9 
 Th

e 
gr

ou
p 

ha
s 

ha
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f t

as
ks

: 
 1.

 
O

ve
rs

ee
in

g 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t t
ar

ge
ts

  
 

2.
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t a

nd
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t i
n 

se
tti

ng
 n

ew
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

ta
rg

et
s 

in
 th

e 
ne

w
 L

oc
al

 A
re

a 
Ag

re
em

en
t 

 3.
 

O
ve

rs
ee

in
g 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

‘C
ho

os
in

g 
H

ea
lth

’ a
nd

 o
th

er
 re

la
te

d 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, w
ith

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 to

: 
a.

 
Ta

ck
le

 te
en

ag
e 

pr
eg

na
nc

y 
 

b.
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

se
xu

al
 h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 re
du

ce
 C

hl
am

yd
ia

 in
fe

ct
io

ns
 

c.
 

P
ro

m
ot

e 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 B
M

E
 g

ro
up

s 
d.

 
Im

pr
ov

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

ct
iv

ity
 a

nd
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f o
be

si
ty

 (p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 c

hi
ld

re
n)

 
e.

 
E

xp
an

d 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t N

H
S 

S
to

p 
Sm

ok
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

f. 
In

tro
du

ce
 N

H
S

 ‘H
ea

lth
 T

ra
in

er
s’

 in
to

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
g.

 
R

ed
uc

e 
al

co
ho

l m
is

us
e 

an
d 

de
te

ct
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
w

ho
 a

tte
nd

 A
&

E
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 

 
4.

 
C

oo
rd

in
at

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 fi
rs

t J
oi

nt
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t f
or

 H
ar

ro
w

 le
d 

by
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

 5.
 

P
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
fo

r a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 p
ol

ic
ie

s,
 s

tra
te

gi
es

 a
nd

 p
la

ns
: 

a.
 

Th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

tra
te

gy
 

b.
 

Th
e 

Ad
ul

ts
 a

nd
 H

ou
si

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

tra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
c.

 
Th

e 
P

C
T 

‘W
or

ld
 C

la
ss

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g’

 s
tra

te
gy

 
d.

 
Th

e 
ne

w
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 s

tra
te

gy
 

 

45



 
186.

 
In

fo
rm

in
g 

pa
rtn

er
s 

of
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

w
ith

: 
a.

 
Th

e 
pl

an
s 

fo
r t

he
 in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

po
ol

in
g 

of
 b

ud
ge

ts
 (e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 fo
r t

he
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

se
rv

ic
es

) 
b.

 
Th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r a

du
lt 

se
rv

ic
es

 
 

7.
 

O
ve

rs
ee

in
g 

ac
tiv

ity
 in

 th
os

e 
gr

ou
ps

 re
po

rti
ng

 to
 th

e 
ad

ul
t h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t g

ro
up

: 
a.

 
Th

e 
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

P
eo

pl
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

b.
 

Th
e 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

es
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 
c.

 
Th

e 
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 B

oa
rd

 
 

8.
 

R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

cu
rre

nt
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

rra
ng

em
en

t f
or

 h
ea

lth
 in

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

; a
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ex

er
ci

se
 o

n 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r n

ew
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

. 
 Pl

an
s 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
 

 1.
 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 m

an
ag

em
en

t g
ro

up
, f

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
 o

f p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
rra

ng
em

en
ts

 is
 p

la
nn

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f a
 h

ea
lth

 in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
a 

jo
in

t c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

bo
ar

d 
(o

r ‘
ad

ul
ts

 tr
us

t’)
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

N
H

S
 H

ar
ro

w
. 

 2.
 

Th
es

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 g
ro

up
s 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 o

ve
rs

ee
 a

nd
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

LA
A

 ta
rg

et
s.

 
 3.

 
Fu

rth
er

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
w

ith
 in

te
gr

at
in

g 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e.
 

 4.
 

A
 h

ea
lth

 in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 s

tra
te

gy
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

a 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
 d

el
iv

er
ed

. 
 5.

 
Th

e 
he

al
th

 in
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

w
el

lb
ei

ng
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 h
av

e 
ov

er
si

gh
t o

f p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

. 
 An

dr
ew

 H
ow

e 
C

ha
ir 

- A
du

lt 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 
 

 

46



 
19C

om
m

un
ity

 C
oh

es
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
  

 Th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

oh
es

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 (C
C

M
G

) h
as

 h
ad

 a
 v

er
y 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 y

ea
r w

ith
 m

an
y 

po
si

tiv
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 it
s 

w
or

k.
  A

 n
um

be
r o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 h

av
e 

ha
d 

po
si

tiv
e 

re
su

lts
 in

 a
ss

is
tin

g 
in

 m
ee

tin
g 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t (
LA

A
) 

ta
rg

et
s 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
y 

ar
ea

s 
of

 w
or

k 
fo

r t
he

 H
ar

ro
w

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (H

S
P

). 
 H

ow
ev

er
, c

ha
lle

ng
es

 re
m

ai
n 

an
d 

th
e 

gr
ou

p 
ha

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
es

e.
 

 C
C

M
G

 h
as

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r s
ev

en
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t (

LA
A

) t
ar

ge
ts

: 
 

• 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 b
el

ie
ve

 th
at

 p
eo

pl
e 

fro
m

 d
iff

er
en

t 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

s 
ge

t o
n 

w
el

l t
og

et
he

r i
n 

th
ei

r l
oc

al
 a

re
a 

(N
I 1

) 
• 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
in

 re
gu

la
r v

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

(N
I 6

) 
• 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t f

or
 a

 th
riv

in
g 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r (

N
I 7

) 
• 

A
du

lt 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
in

 s
po

rt 
(N

I 8
) 

• 
E

ng
ag

em
en

t i
n 

th
e 

ar
ts

 (N
I 1

1)
 

• 
M

ig
ra

nt
s’

 E
ng

lis
h 

La
ng

ua
ge

 s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
(N

I 1
3)

 
• 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
re

si
lie

nc
e 

to
 v

io
le

nt
 e

xt
re

m
is

m
 (N

I 3
5)

 

 A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

 C
C

M
G

 o
ve

rs
ee

s 
th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e:
 

• 
P

la
y 

S
tra

te
gy

 
• 

S
om

al
i I

nt
er

ag
en

cy
 S

om
al

i T
as

kf
or

ce
 

• 
H

at
e 

C
rim

e 
 C

C
M

G
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y,
 p

ol
ic

e,
 P

C
T,

 H
A

V
S 

an
d 

m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 lo
ca

l v
ol

un
ta

ry
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

.  
 C

C
M

G
 m

em
be

rs
 h

av
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

ed
 n

ot
 o

nl
y 

to
 th

e 
hi

gh
 le

ve
l p

rio
rit

ie
s 

in
 o

ur
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 L
A

A
 b

ut
 a

ls
o 

to
 o

ur
 d

el
iv

er
y 

pl
an

s 
e.

g.
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 V
io

le
nt

 E
xt

re
m

is
m

 (P
V

E
) a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
s,

 S
om

al
i C

om
m

un
ity

 N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
, 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ad
op

te
d 

as
 a

 k
ey

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 fo
r t

he
 H

S
P

. 
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
oh

es
io

n 
(N

I 1
) 

O
ve

r t
he

 la
st

 fo
ur

 y
ea

rs
 M

O
R

I Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 L

ife
 s

ur
ve

ys
 h

av
e 

in
di

ca
te

d 
a 

do
w

nw
ar

d 
tre

nd
 in

 p
er

ce
pt

io
ns

 o
f c

om
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

. T
he

se
 

tre
nd

s 
ha

ve
 le

d 
to

 a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
rio

rit
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 i.
e.

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

on
ne

ct
s 

co
he

si
on

 p
ro

je
ct

s;
 a

 fa
ith

, c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 

cu
ltu

ra
l e

ve
nt

s 
ca

le
nd

ar
; a

 n
ew

 b
or

ou
gh

-w
id

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

n.
 

 Th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

on
ne

ct
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ha
s 

ta
rg

et
ed

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

t w
ar

ds
 w

he
re

 p
er

ce
pt

io
ns

 o
f c

oh
es

io
n 

w
er

e 
lo

w
es

t. 
C

om
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

ro
m

ot
ed

 v
ia

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ar

ts
, s

po
rts

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

- f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 s

tre
et

 p
ar

tie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

‘O
n 

th
e 

B
ea

ch
’ e

ve
nt

. 
 

47



 
20W

e 
ha

ve
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
 F

ai
th

, C
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 C

ul
tu

ra
l E

ve
nt

s 
C

al
en

da
r, 

w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 o
n-

lin
e 

re
so

ur
ce

 o
f c

om
m

un
ity

 e
ve

nt
s 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 m

an
y 

fa
ith

s 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
in

 H
ar

ro
w

.  
Th

e 
ca

le
nd

ar
 a

ls
o 

lis
ts

 c
ou

nc
il 

su
pp

or
te

d 
ev

en
ts

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

U
nd

er
 O

ne
 

S
ky

 fe
st

iv
al

, w
hi

ch
 a

ttr
ac

te
d 

12
,0

00
 v

is
ito

rs
 in

 2
00

8.
 

 To
 b

et
te

r u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r t

he
 re

la
tiv

el
y 

lo
w

 p
er

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n,
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 a
 re

se
ar

ch
 p

ro
je

ct
 b

y 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
Ig

ni
te

.  
Th

is
 in

vo
lv

ed
 re

se
ar

ch
 w

ith
 s

om
e 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
s,

 k
ey

 c
om

m
un

ity
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 a
nd

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 w
ith

 re
si

de
nt

s,
 fr

on
tli

ne
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

.  
 

 Ig
ni

te
 id

en
tif

ie
d,

 fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 a

ss
is

t t
he

 in
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 m

ig
ra

nt
s,

 a
nd

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

H
ar

ro
w

 h
as

 c
ho

se
n 

N
I 1

3 
as

 a
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

pr
io

rit
y 

in
 th

e 
LA

A
 to

 h
el

p 
im

pr
ov

e 
E

ng
lis

h 
la

ng
ua

ge
 s

ki
lls

. A
 n

ew
 re

si
de

nt
’s

 W
el

co
m

e 
G

ui
de

 w
ill

 b
e 

la
un

ch
ed

 in
 M

ay
 2

00
9 

to
 h

el
p 

ne
w

 a
rri

va
ls

 
ac

ce
ss

 e
ss

en
tia

l s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 Th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 h
as

 a
ls

o 
le

d 
to

 C
C

M
G

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

es
ou

rc
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

H
S

P
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

a 
hi

gh
 p

ro
fil

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

n.
 It

 is
 in

te
nd

ed
 th

at
 th

e 
‘O

ur
 H

ar
ro

w
, O

ur
 C

om
m

un
ity

’ b
or

ou
gh

 w
id

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

w
ill 

as
si

st
 in

 th
e 

re
ve

rs
al

 o
f t

he
 

do
w

nt
ur

n 
in

 c
oh

es
io

n 
in

di
ca

to
rs

. 
 20

09
-2

01
0 

– 
P

la
nn

ed
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
oh

es
io

n 
A

ct
iv

iti
es

 
 

• 
W

el
co

m
e 

G
ui

de
 to

 b
e 

la
un

ch
ed

 a
nd

 d
is

tri
bu

te
d 

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
on

ne
ct

s 
pl

an
ne

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 in

 ta
rg

et
ed

 w
ar

ds
 

• 
Fa

ith
, C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 C
ul

tu
ra

l E
ve

nt
s 

C
al

en
da

r o
f e

ve
nt

s 
to

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

U
nd

er
 O

ne
 S

ky
 2

00
9 

• 
O

ur
 H

ar
ro

w
, O

ur
 C

om
m

un
ity

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

– 
to

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
  

le
ad

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
au

tu
m

n 
20

09
 Q

ua
lit

y 
of

 L
ife

 S
ur

ve
y 

 
Vo

lu
nt

ee
rin

g 
(N

I 6
) 

In
 e

ffo
rts

 to
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f a
du

lt 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h,
 C

C
M

G
 in

st
ig

at
ed

 th
e 

fir
st

 H
ar

ro
w

’s
 H

er
oe

s 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r a

w
ar

ds
 in

 M
ay

 2
00

8.
 

Th
e 

pr
e 

an
d 

po
st

 e
ve

nt
 p

ub
lic

ity
 a

ro
un

d 
th

is
 h

ug
el

y 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 a
nd

 h
ig

h 
pr

of
ile

 e
ve

nt
 c

oi
nc

id
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

M
O

R
I s

ur
ve

y,
 w

hi
ch

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 a

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

rs
 o

f i
nd

iv
id

ua
ls

 v
ol

un
te

er
in

g 
fro

m
 s

oc
ia

lly
 e

xc
lu

de
d 

gr
ou

ps
 (i

n 
ex

ce
ss

 o
f t

he
 L

A
A 

ta
rg

et
) a

nd
 a

 p
os

iti
ve

 tr
en

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r o

th
er

 a
du

lt 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

. I
t i

s 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
to

 n
ot

e 
th

at
 e

ve
n 

if 
th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 re
su

lts
 w

er
e 

to
 re

m
ai

n 
st

at
ic

 fo
r t

he
 th

ird
 a

nd
 fi

na
l 

ye
ar

 o
f t

he
 L

AA
 th

is
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
a 

de
tri

m
en

ta
l e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
th

e 
LA

A
 ta

rg
et

. 
 It 

is
 C

C
M

G
’s

 a
m

bi
tio

n 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f v

ol
un

te
er

s,
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l g
ro

up
s,

 w
ith

in
 H

ar
ro

w
 a

nd
 a

 fu
rth

er
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 H
er

oe
s 

ev
en

t i
s 

be
in

g 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

r 2
00

9 
to

 c
oi

nc
id

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
P

la
ce

 S
ur

ve
y 

in
 th

e 
au

tu
m

n.
 

 C
C

M
G

 a
ls

o 
la

un
ch

ed
 a

nd
 p

ilo
te

d 
th

e 
O

ne
-4

-O
ne

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 v

ol
un

te
er

 s
ch

em
e 

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
in

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

9.
 T

he
 s

ch
em

e 
ha

s 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

ro
lle

d 
ou

t a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

it 
is

 in
te

nd
ed

 th
at

 it
 w

ill
 b

e 
fu

rth
er

 ro
lle

d 
ou

t t
o 

an
ot

he
r H

S
P

 p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
in

 2
00

9-
20

10
.  

48



 
21 20

09
-2

01
0 

– 
V

ol
un

te
er

in
g 

• 
H

ar
ro

w
’s

 H
er

oe
s 

vo
lu

nt
ee

r a
w

ar
ds

 e
ve

nt
 to

 b
e 

he
ld

 o
n 

14
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
9 

• 
C

on
tin

ua
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

O
ne

-4
-O

ne
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 v
ol

un
te

er
in

g 
sc

he
m

e 
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

• 
R

ol
l o

ut
 o

f t
he

 O
ne

-4
-O

ne
 s

ch
em

e 
to

 a
 H

S
P

 p
ar

tn
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
 En

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 a
 th

riv
in

g 
th

ird
 s

ec
to

r (
N

I 7
) 

D
ur

in
g 

20
08

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l u

nd
er

to
ok

 a
 s

cr
ut

in
y 

re
vi

ew
 ti

tle
d 

‘D
el

iv
er

in
g 

a 
st

re
ng

th
en

ed
 v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
r’ 

w
hi

ch
 lo

ok
ed

 a
t t

he
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l a
nd

 th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
r. 

 T
he

 re
vi

ew
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
ed

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

an
d 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
ec

to
r 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
.  

Th
e 

sc
op

e 
of

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 in

cl
ud

ed
 fu

nd
in

g,
 v

ol
un

te
er

in
g,

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

ss
et

s.
  E

vi
de

nc
e 

w
as

 g
at

he
re

d 
fro

m
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 s
ou

rc
es

 b
ot

h 
fro

m
 w

ith
in

 H
ar

ro
w

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ot
he

r B
or

ou
gh

s.
  T

he
 fi

na
l r

ep
or

t o
f t

he
 re

vi
ew

 g
ro

up
 w

as
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 C

ab
in

et
 in

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
8 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

ag
re

ed
 to

 ta
ke

 fo
rw

ar
d 

21
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

 2
2 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 m
ad

e.
 

 20
09

-2
01

0 
– 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t f

or
 a

 th
riv

in
g 

th
ird

 s
ec

to
r 

 
• 

N
I 7

 w
or

ki
ng

 g
ro

up
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r 

• 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
 T

hi
rd

 S
ec

to
r s

tra
te

gy
. 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f c
ou

nc
il’s

 g
ra

nt
 c

rit
er

ia
 

 In
cr

ea
se

 A
du

lt 
Pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 S

po
rt

s 
&

 L
ei

su
re

 (N
I8

) 
Th

e 
la

te
st

 A
ct

iv
e 

P
eo

pl
e 

S
ur

ve
y 

re
po

rte
d 

a 
lo

ca
l f

al
l i

n 
th

e 
ad

ul
t p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

le
ve

ls
 in

 s
po

rt 
an

d 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

ct
iv

ity
, d

ro
pp

in
g 

fro
m

 a
n 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 

ba
se

lin
e 

of
 a

bo
ut

 1
9%

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
to

 1
3.

3%
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

 b
ro

ad
 b

us
in

es
s 

pl
an

 fo
r a

ct
iv

e 
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
en

ga
ge

 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 w
ith

 re
si

de
nt

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
ne

xt
 2

 y
ea

rs
 o

f L
A

A
 p

la
nn

ed
 a

ct
iv

ity
 

 20
09

-2
01

0 
– 

In
cr

ea
se

 A
du

lt 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 S

po
rts

 &
 L

ei
su

re
 

• 
Fo

r t
he

 n
ex

t A
ct

iv
e 

P
eo

pl
e 

Su
rv

ey
, w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ow
 u

nd
er

w
ay

, a
rra

ng
em

en
ts

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

w
ith

 S
po

rt 
En

gl
an

d 
to

 b
oo

st
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h’
s 

sa
m

pl
e 

si
ze

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 re

sp
on

se
 fr

om
 re

si
de

nt
s.

 
• 

La
un

ch
 th

e 
“S

w
im

 fo
r F

re
e”

 s
ch

em
e-

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 fr

ee
 s

w
im

m
in

g 
fo

r a
ll 

un
de

r 1
6’

s 
an

d 
ov

er
 6

0’
s 

fo
r t

he
 n

ex
t 2

 y
ea

rs
. C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

 
co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l p
la

n 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
Fr

ee
 S

w
im

m
in

g 
of

fe
r t

o 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
• 

In
ve

st
 th

e 
D

C
M

S
/S

po
rt 

E
ng

la
nd

 c
ap

ita
l g

ra
nt

 o
f £

1.
8m

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
hs

 s
w

im
m

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 H
at

ch
 E

nd
 H

ig
h 

S
ch

oo
l a

nd
 H

at
ch

 E
nd

 P
oo

l. 
• 

R
e-

la
un

ch
 th

e 
W

hi
tc

hu
rc

h 
P

la
yi

ng
 fi

el
ds

 a
s 

a 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
po

rts
 a

nd
 le

is
ur

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 a
 lo

ca
l s

po
rts

/c
om

m
un

ity
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n,

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
a 

pu
bl

ic
 te

nd
er

 e
xe

rc
is

e.
 

• 
O

pe
n 

th
e 

ne
w

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

po
rts

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 th
e 

ne
w

 W
hi

tm
or

e 
S

ch
oo

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
• 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

le
is

ur
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t c

on
tra

ct
 fo

r t
he

 b
or

ou
gh

’s
 s

po
rts

 a
nd

 le
is

ur
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s,
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

an
 im

pr
ov

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 fo

r r
es

id
en

ts
. 

49



 
22

• 
S

tre
ng

th
en

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r s
po

rts
 a

nd
 le

is
ur

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
, s

up
po

rti
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f s

el
f-s

us
ta

in
in

g 
m

od
el

s 
of

 d
el

iv
er

y.
 

 En
ga

ge
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ar

ts
 (N

I 1
1)

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

w
or

ki
ng

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 A
rts

 C
ou

nc
il 

E
ng

la
nd

 (A
C

E
) o

n 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 th
e 

N
I1

1 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

fo
r H

ar
ro

w
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 

H
ar

ro
w

 A
rts

 C
en

tre
 s

ec
ur

in
g 

£1
0,

00
0 

fu
nd

in
g 

un
de

r t
he

 'A
 N

ig
ht

 L
es

s 
O

rd
in

ar
y'

 in
iti

at
iv

e 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 fr
ee

 ti
ck

et
s 

to
 th

os
e 

U
nd

er
 2

6.
 T

he
 M

ay
or

 o
f 

Lo
nd

on
 h

as
 ju

st
 re

le
as

ed
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r c

ul
tu

re
 th

at
 in

cl
ud

e 
‘im

pr
ov

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

in
 o

ut
er

 L
on

do
n 

bo
ro

ug
hs

’ a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 w

hi
ch

 H
ar

ro
w

 A
rts

 C
en

tre
 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 A

C
E

's
 fu

nd
ed

 O
ut

er
 L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 V

en
ue

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 P
in

 b
ad

ge
s 

an
d 

st
ic

ke
rs

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 A
C

E
 fo

r t
he

 
na

tio
na

l c
am

pa
ig

n 
'A

R
TS

 - 
S

ee
n 

It,
 D

on
e 

It,
 G

ot
 C

re
at

iv
e'

, h
av

e 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
nd

 w
e 

w
ill

 b
eg

in
 to

 d
is

tri
bu

te
 th

es
e 

at
 e

ve
nt

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
U

nd
er

 O
ne

 S
ky

 to
 ra

is
e 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
's

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 h

ow
 m

uc
h 

th
ey

 d
o 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 th

e 
ar

ts
. 

 O
ve

r t
he

 e
nt

ire
 2

00
8-

09
 p

er
io

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
fu

nd
ed

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

at
 H

ar
ro

w
 A

rts
 C

en
tre

 h
as

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 to

 b
et

te
r r

ef
le

ct
 a

ll 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 o

f H
ar

ro
w

 
an

d 
br

ou
gh

t n
ew

 a
ud

ie
nc

es
 to

 th
e 

si
te

. C
ou

nc
il 

fu
nd

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
s 

at
 H

ar
ro

w
 A

rts
 C

en
tre

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
an

 a
ud

ie
nc

e 
of

 2
,8

78
 in

 Q
4 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

ei
gh

t s
ol

d-
ou

t e
ve

nt
s 

an
d 

an
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

cc
up

an
cy

 o
f 8

4%
 c

ap
ac

ity
. V

is
ito

rs
 to

 o
th

er
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
t H

ar
ro

w
 A

rts
 C

en
tre

 to
ta

lle
d 

34
,0

96
 in

 Q
4 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
au

di
en

ce
s 

fo
r H

ar
ro

w
 M

us
ic

 S
er

vi
ce

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

s 
an

d 
st

ud
en

ts
 o

f A
C

L 
cl

as
se

s.
 F

am
ily

 ti
ck

et
s,

 G
ro

up
 b

oo
ki

ng
 d

is
co

un
ts

 a
nd

 d
ay

tim
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 fo
r o

ld
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
in

tro
du

ce
d 

to
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
s 

at
 H

ar
ro

w
 A

rts
 C

en
tre

. 
 20

09
-2

01
0 

- A
rts

 
• 

In
cr

ea
se

 a
ud

ie
nc

es
 to

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

at
 H

ar
ro

w
 A

rts
 C

en
tre

 b
y 

4,
50

0 
pa

. 
• 

P
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

op
en

in
g 

ni
gh

t f
or

 F
ilm

-o
n-

th
e-

H
ill

 a
nd

 a
n 

ex
hi

bi
tio

n 
fo

r t
he

 s
ch

oo
l a

rt 
co

m
pe

tit
io

n 
at

 H
ar

ro
w

 A
rts

 C
en

tre
 a

s 
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

‘O
ur

 
H

ar
ro

w
, O

ur
 C

om
m

un
ity

’ c
am

pa
ig

n 
• 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

at
 H

ar
ro

w
 A

rts
 C

en
tre

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
 ta

rg
et

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
of

 th
is

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
• 

D
el

iv
er

 O
pe

n 
W

ee
ke

nd
 fa

m
ily

 fu
n 

da
y 

at
 H

ar
ro

w
 A

rts
 C

en
tre

 
• 

La
un

ch
 o

nl
in

e 
di

re
ct

or
y 

of
 lo

ca
l a

rts
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 a
ct

iv
ity

 
 A

du
lt 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

(N
I 1

3)
  

W
e 

ha
ve

 s
ec

ur
ed

 a
 tw

o-
ye

ar
 ‘P

ar
en

ts
 in

to
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t’ 

(P
IE

) p
ro

je
ct

, f
un

de
d 

by
 th

e 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 S

ki
lls

 C
ou

nc
il 

(L
S

C
). 

Th
e 

to
ta

l f
un

di
ng

 o
f 

£4
62

,0
00

 is
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 w
or

k-
re

la
te

d 
En

gl
is

h 
fo

r S
pe

ak
er

s 
of

 O
th

er
 L

an
gu

ag
es

 (E
S

O
L)

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

in
to

 e
m

pl
oy

ab
ili

ty
. T

w
en

ty
-o

ne
 

co
ur

se
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
ru

n 
in

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

C
en

tre
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

Fa
m

ily
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

Im
pa

ct
 F

un
di

ng
 o

f £
81

,0
00

. 
 A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
, w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

se
cu

re
d 

£4
00

,0
00

 E
S

F 
fu

nd
in

g 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 re
si

de
nt

s 
in

 fi
ve

 ta
rg

et
ed

 lo
ca

l a
re

as
 b

ac
k 

in
to

 
w

or
k 

(th
e 

XC
IT

E
 p

ro
je

ct
). 

 
 W

e 
ha

ve
 in

ve
st

ed
 a

no
th

er
 £

1m
 o

f L
S

C
 c

ap
ita

l f
un

ds
 to

 b
ui

ld
 a

nd
 o

pe
n 

a 
ne

w
 A

du
lt 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 C
en

tre
 o

n 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

s 
of

 a
 lo

ca
l p

rim
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

. 
Th

e 
Ke

nt
on

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
C

en
tre

 is
 b

ei
ng

 ru
n 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 a

 lo
ca

l F
E

 c
ol

le
ge

, a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s 

re
si

de
nt

s 
fro

m
 o

ne
 o

f o
ur

 m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 w
ar

ds
. 

 

50



 
23O

ur
 A

du
lt 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 w
as

 th
e 

on
ly

 c
ou

nc
il 

pr
ov

id
er

 in
 th

e 
co

un
try

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

 le
ve

l 2
 (‘

ve
ry

 g
oo

d’
) g

ra
de

 in
 it

s 
O

fs
te

d 
In

sp
ec

tio
n.

  
 20

09
-2

01
0 

– 
P

la
nn

ed
 A

du
lt 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

A
ct

iv
iti

es
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
Pa

re
nt

s 
in

to
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t p

ro
je

ct
 

• 
E

S
O

L 
tra

in
in

g 
• 

D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 X
C

IT
E 

pr
oj

ec
t i

n 
ta

rg
et

ed
 a

re
as

 
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
es

ili
en

ce
 to

 V
io

le
nt

 E
xt

re
m

is
m

 (N
I 3

5)
 

Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

th
e 

lo
ca

l M
us

lim
 c

om
m

un
ity

 to
 b

ui
ld

 re
si

lie
nc

e 
to

 v
io

le
nt

 e
xt

re
m

is
m

 in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 A

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 M

us
lim

 li
ai

so
n 

of
fic

er
 (a

 P
ol

ic
e 

O
ffi

ce
r) 

w
as

 fu
nd

ed
 v

ia
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 V
io

le
nt

 E
xt

re
m

is
m

 (P
V

E
) f

un
di

ng
 to

 h
el

p 
bu

ild
 

re
si

lie
nc

e 
to

 v
io

le
nt

 e
xt

re
m

is
m

.  
 A

ls
o,

 T
w

o 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
ea

ch
 In

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 - 
on

e 
of

 w
ho

m
 is

 b
as

ed
 in

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
en

tra
l 

M
os

qu
e 

(H
C

M
). 

Th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 R

ea
ch

 In
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

w
or

ke
d 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l m
os

qu
es

 a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
M

us
lim

 
W

om
en

’s
 N

et
w

or
k 

an
d 

M
us

lim
 Y

ou
th

 F
or

um
. T

he
y 

ha
ve

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 p

ro
je

ct
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

yo
un

g 
le

ad
er

s 
tra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 a

 
su

m
m

er
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 p
ro

je
ct

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 H

C
M

 a
nd

 th
e 

po
lic

e,
 a

nd
 a

n 
e 

sa
fe

ty
 p

ro
je

ct
 –

 a
ll 

of
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
he

lp
ed

 b
ui

ld
 b

rid
ge

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
M

us
lim

 c
om

m
un

ity
.  

 
 Th

e 
W

om
en

’s
 e

-s
af

et
y 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

pr
om

ot
in

g 
In

te
rn

et
 s

af
et

y 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

am
on

gs
t M

us
lim

 w
om

en
, w

on
 th

e 
‘B

es
t W

om
en

’s
 P

ro
je

ct
’ a

w
ar

d 
in

 th
e 

20
09

 G
O

L 
P

VE
 a

w
ar

ds
 s

ch
em

e.
  T

hi
s 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
a 

lo
t o

f l
oc

al
 a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l m

ed
ia

 in
te

re
st

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

in
te

re
st

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 C

ou
nc

ils
 in

te
re

st
ed

 in
 

re
pl

ic
at

in
g 

ou
r g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e.

 
 A

dd
iti

on
al

ly
 £

15
0,

00
0 

w
as

 s
ec

ur
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

Yo
ut

h 
Ju

st
ic

e 
Bo

ar
d 

(Y
JB

) f
or

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 P

VE
 to

 s
up

po
rt 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e.

 T
hi

s 
el

em
en

t o
f 

P
V

E
 w

or
k 

is
 b

ei
ng

 le
d 

by
 th

e 
Yo

ut
h 

O
ffe

nd
in

g 
Te

am
 (Y

O
T)

. 
 20

09
-2

01
0 

- B
ui

ld
in

g 
R

es
ilie

nc
e 

to
 V

io
le

nt
 E

xt
re

m
is

m
 

D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 P
VE

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
(in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

e)
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

: 
• 

se
t u

p 
of

 th
e 

P
re

ve
nt

 P
an

el
  

• 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r t

he
 H

ar
ro

w
 M

us
lim

 W
om

en
’s

 N
et

w
or

k 
an

d 
th

e 
M

us
lim

 Y
ou

th
 F

or
um

 
• 

e 
sa

fe
ty

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
 Pl

ay
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

H
ar

ro
w

’s
 fi

rs
t P

la
y 

S
tra

te
gy

 w
as

 fo
rm

al
ly

 a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
 M

ay
 2

00
7 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
es

 th
e 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
pl

ay
 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

in
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h.
 B

ig
 L

ot
te

ry
 fu

nd
in

g 
of

 4
65

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 u

se
d 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 ta

rg
et

ed
 a

re
as

 a
nd

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

gr
ou

ps
.  

Th
is

 fu
nd

in
g 

w
as

 u
se

d 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 s
ix

 p
la

y 
pr

oj
ec

ts
:  

Th
is

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
re

e 
pa

rk
 p

la
yg

ro
un

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 in

 R
ox

et
h 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

G
ro

un
d,

 
C

an
on

s 
P

ar
k 

an
d 

H
ea

ds
to

ne
 M

an
or

 re
cr

ea
tio

n 
gr

ou
nd

; t
w

o 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

se
ct

or
-le

d 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
on

e 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t i
n 

G
ra

ng
e 

Fa
rm

 c
lo

se
, S

ou
th

 H
ar

ro
w

. 
 20

09
-1

0 
pl

an
ne

d 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

51



 
24 D

ur
in

g 
20

09
-2

01
1 

H
ar

ro
w

 w
ill 

be
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

£1
.1

m
 P

la
yb

ui
ld

er
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 2
2 

pl
ay

 s
pa

ce
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
Bo

ro
ug

h.
  E

ac
h 

pl
ay

 s
pa

ce
 w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

in
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 g

oo
d 

qu
al

ity
, o

pe
n 

ac
ce

ss
 p

la
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

 So
m

al
i I

nt
er

 A
ge

nc
y 

Ta
sk

fo
rc

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
of

 S
om

al
i V

ol
un

ta
ry

 O
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 (H

A
S

V
O

) w
as

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 re
se

ar
ch

 in
to

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

S
om

al
i 

co
m

m
un

ity
. T

hi
s 

w
as

 in
 re

co
gn

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 fa

ct
 th

at
 a

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
S

om
al

i c
om

m
un

ity
 is

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 la

rg
es

t a
nd

 fa
st

es
t g

ro
w

in
g 

ne
w

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 in
 

H
ar

ro
w

, t
he

re
 w

as
 v

er
y 

lit
tle

 d
oc

um
en

ta
ry

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 in

fo
rm

 p
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n.
 A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 re

po
rt,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

an
 in

te
r-a

ge
nc

y 
ta

sk
fo

rc
e 

an
d 

an
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
re

po
rt 

fin
di

ng
s.

  O
ne

 o
f t

he
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l 
ou

tc
om

es
 o

f t
hi

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 th

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 H
A

SV
O

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 c

ul
tu

ra
l a

w
ar

en
es

s 
se

ss
io

ns
 to

 s
ta

ff,
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
he

lp
ed

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 

pa
rtn

er
s 

im
pr

ov
e 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 th
e 

cu
ltu

re
 a

nd
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 o

f t
he

 S
om

al
i c

om
m

un
ity

. 
 20

09
-2

01
0 

- S
om

al
i I

nt
er

 A
ge

nc
y 

Ta
sk

fo
rc

e 
• 

A
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
.  

• 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f t
he

 S
om

al
i I

nt
er

 A
ge

nc
y 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
 th

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 p
as

t t
w

o 
ye

ar
s.

 
 H

at
e 

C
rim

e 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
ity

 T
en

si
on

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
In

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
8,

 th
e 

H
at

e 
C

rim
e 

Fo
ru

m
 la

un
ch

ed
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l t

w
el

ve
 c

om
m

un
ity

 v
en

ue
s 

w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
ca

n 
re

po
rt 

H
at

e 
C

rim
e 

lo
ca

lly
, 

br
in

gi
ng

 th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f t
hi

rd
 p

ar
ty

 re
po

rti
ng

 s
ite

s 
to

 tw
en

ty
 fo

ur
. W

e 
ar

e 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

m
on

ito
r l

ev
el

s 
of

 re
po

rte
d 

ha
te

 c
rim

e 
an

d 
ha

ve
 s

et
 u

p 
a 

m
ul

ti 
ag

en
cy

 g
ro

up
 to

 m
on

ito
r c

om
m

un
ity

 te
ns

io
ns

 a
nd

 fe
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

m
on

th
ly

 re
tu

rn
s 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
ub

m
itt

in
g 

to
 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t O

ffi
ce

 fo
r L

on
do

n 
(G

O
L)

.  
 

 20
09

-2
01

0 
- H

at
e 

C
rim

e 
an

d 
C

om
m

un
ity

 T
en

si
on

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
• 

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 s

up
po

rt 
fo

r t
hi

rd
 p

ar
ty

 re
po

rti
ng

 s
ite

s 
• 

E
m

be
dd

in
g 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 te
ns

io
n 

re
po

rti
ng

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

pa
rtn

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

 
• 

C
om

m
un

ity
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 ro
ad

 s
ho

w
s 

to
 b

e 
he

ld
 in

 h
ig

h 
vi

si
bi

lit
y 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 L
ea

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

th
e 

H
at

e 
C

rim
e 

Fo
ru

m
 a

nd
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 th
e 

po
lic

e 
an

d 
th

e 
cr

ow
n 

pr
os

ec
ut

io
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

 Ja
ve

d 
Kh

an
& 

An
ne

 W
hi

te
he

ad
 (C

o-
C

ha
irs

) 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
oh

es
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
 

 

52



 
25Sa

fe
r H

ar
ro

w
 M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
  

 
20

08
/0

9 
 D

ur
in

g 
20

08
/9

, t
he

 S
af

er
 H

ar
ro

w
 M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
 c

re
at

ed
 a

 J
oi

nt
 A

ge
nc

y 
Ta

ct
ic

al
 C

o-
or

di
na

tin
g 

an
d 

Ta
sk

in
g 

G
ro

up
 (J

AT
C

G
). 

Th
e 

JA
TC

G
 

is
 a

 m
ul

ti 
ag

en
cy

 a
ct

io
n 

ba
se

d 
m

ee
tin

g 
th

at
 m

ee
ts

 m
on

th
ly

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
; a

na
ly

st
s 

us
e 

tre
nd

 g
ra

ph
s,

 
he

at
 m

ap
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r t
oo

ls
 to

 p
re

se
nt

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

to
 th

e 
gr

ou
p 

w
ho

 d
ec

id
e 

up
on

 th
e 

be
st

 m
ul

ti 
ag

en
cy

 s
ol

ut
io

ns
. R

es
ul

ts
 a

na
ly

si
s 

is
 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

ac
tio

ns
 ta

ke
n.

 T
hi

s 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 is

 jo
in

in
g 

up
 th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

f p
ub

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

lo
ca

lly
 a

nd
 m

ak
in

g 
th

em
 m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
e.

g.
 s

to
le

n 
nu

m
be

r p
la

te
s 

fo
un

d 
in

 d
ra

in
s,

 re
fu

se
 w

or
ke

rs
 a

ct
in

g 
as

 e
ye

s 
an

d 
ea

rs
 o

n 
cr

im
e 

is
su

es
, g

ra
ffi

ti 
ho

ts
po

ts
 

er
ad

ic
at

ed
 e

tc
. 

 S
af

er
 H

ar
ro

w
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 le
ad

in
g 

on
 th

e 
‘W

ee
ks

 o
f A

ct
io

n’
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

. T
he

se
 w

ee
ks

 o
f a

ct
io

n 
id

en
tif

y 
a 

lo
ca

l a
re

a 
ne

ed
in

g 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

al
ys

is
. A

 ‘w
ee

k 
of

 a
ct

io
n’

 is
 th

en
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
po

lic
e,

 c
ou

nc
il,

 L
FB

, p
ro

ba
tio

n,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
co

nc
en

tra
tin

g 
on

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
is

 a
re

a.
 M

ax
im

um
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

us
ed

 to
 ta

ck
le

 lo
ng

 s
ta

nd
in

g 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

e.
g.

 g
ra

ffi
ti 

re
m

ov
al

, t
re

e 
pl

an
tin

g,
 c

rim
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
pa

ck
s,

 
sm

ar
t w

at
er

in
g 

of
 h

om
es

, s
tre

et
 c

le
an

in
g,

 e
tc

. T
hi

s 
co

nc
ep

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 v

er
y 

po
si

tiv
el

y 
an

d 
re

se
ar

ch
 is

 n
ot

 o
n-

go
in

g 
to

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 p

ub
lic

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n.
 

 S
af

er
 H

ar
ro

w
 h

as
 la

un
ch

ed
 O

pe
ra

tio
n 

R
ec

la
im

, w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 ta

rg
et

ed
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

to
 ta

ck
le

 d
riv

er
s 

in
 u

ni
ns

ur
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s.
 V

eh
ic

le
s 

ar
e 

st
op

pe
d 

an
d 

if 
un

in
su

re
d 

ar
e 

th
er

e 
an

d 
th

en
 s

ei
ze

d.
 If

 fi
ne

s 
ar

e 
no

t p
ai

d,
 th

e 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

re
 q

ui
ck

ly
 s

cr
ap

pe
d.

 D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pa
st

 6
 m

on
th

s 
ov

er
 1

00
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

w
er

e 
se

iz
ed

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
. 

 Th
e 

Sa
fe

r H
ar

ro
w

 M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 is
 le

ad
in

g 
on

 th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 a

 J
oi

nt
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 G
ro

up
 (J

A
G

) f
or

 th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
. T

hi
s 

gr
ou

p 
of

 a
na

ly
st

s 
fro

m
 d

iff
er

en
t a

ge
nc

ie
s 

w
ill 

un
de

rta
ke

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
an

al
ys

is
 o

n 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 is
su

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
. A

na
ly

tic
al

 e
xp

er
tis

e 
w

ill 
be

 u
se

d 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ba

se
 fo

r s
tra

te
gi

c 
de

ci
si

on
s.

  
 20

09
/1

0 
 Th

e 
Sa

fe
r H

ar
ro

w
 m

an
ag

em
en

t g
ro

up
 w

ill
 b

e 
fo

cu
si

ng
 o

n 
ta

ck
in

g 
bu

rg
la

ry
 a

nd
 v

io
le

nc
e 

in
 2

00
9/

10
. I

n 
pa

rti
cu

la
r, 

w
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

ro
lli

ng
 o

ut
 

in
fo

rm
at

iv
e 

bu
rg

la
ry

 p
ac

ks
 to

 v
ic

tim
s 

an
d 

gi
vi

ng
 m

or
e 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 c

rim
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ad

vi
ce

 th
ro

ug
h 

S
af

er
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 v
is

its
. W

e 
w

ill
 

pr
od

uc
e 

m
or

e 
ne

w
sl

et
te

rs
 th

at
 a

re
 w

ar
d 

ba
se

d 
an

d 
te

ll 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 lo
ca

lly
 w

ha
t t

he
 p

ol
ic

e 
ar

e 
do

in
g 

to
 ta

ck
le

 th
e 

is
su

es
 th

at
 m

at
te

r t
o 

th
em

 m
os

t. 
 R

ic
ha

rd
 W

al
to

n 
C

ha
ir 

53



 
26H

ar
ro

w
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (C

YP
SP

 
  Th

is
 is

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 re

po
rt 

to
 H

ar
ro

w
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 (H
S

P
) f

ro
m

 H
ar

ro
w

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 

P
eo

pl
e 

 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 (C
YP

S
P

) 
• 

It 
de

sc
rib

es
 k

ey
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 in
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

A
pr

il 
20

08
-M

ar
ch

 2
00

9 
• 

Th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t d
es

cr
ib

es
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 y
ea

r p
os

iti
on

 in
 re

la
tio

n 
to

 E
va

lu
at

io
n,

 P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

y 
 

se
tti

ng
 a

nd
 n

ex
t s

te
ps

 
• 

A
ll 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 a
re

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 a
nd

 m
os

t i
nc

lu
de

 th
e 

3rd
 S

ec
to

r. 
 Ev

al
ua

tio
n:

 
• 

Th
e 

C
YP

S
P

 o
ve

ra
ll 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e.
 

• 
Th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 o
ur

 a
nn

ua
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t w
as

 v
er

y 
po

si
tiv

e 
w

ith
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l g
ra

di
ng

 o
f 3

. 
• 

Th
e 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
YP

S
P

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 th
ro

ug
h 

an
 a

w
ay

 d
ay

 b
y 

th
e 

C
YP

S
P

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t w

ith
 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

. 
• 

E
nd

 o
f y

ea
r p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

ill 
be

 c
om

pl
et

e 
in

 J
ul

y.
 T

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e.

 
• 

Th
e 

C
om

m
on

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
is

 n
ow

 g
ov

er
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

C
YP

S
P

 (p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

by
 th

e 
LS

C
B

) 
• 

It 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

-fr
am

ed
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

Lo
rd

 L
am

in
g 

re
po

rt 
in

to
 B

ab
y 

P
. 

 Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 p
rio

rit
y 

se
tti

ng
 

 
• 

Th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 

P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 C
ab

in
et

 a
nd

 w
ill

 g
o 

to
 fu

ll 
co

un
ci

l t
hi

s 
m

on
th

. 
• 

It 
is

 th
e 

re
su

lt 
of

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 k
ey

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

pa
re

nt
s,

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 p

ar
en

ts
. 

• 
Th

e 
pl

an
 is

 w
eb

-b
as

ed
 a

nd
 in

te
ra

ct
iv

e,
 w

ith
 li

nk
s 

to
 p

la
ns

, a
nd

 p
os

iti
on

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 to
 k

ee
p 

it 
up

 to
 d

at
e 

an
d 

co
nt

em
po

ra
ry

. 
• 

It 
co

ve
rs

 th
e 

pe
rio

d 
20

09
-2

01
1 

w
he

n 
w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 s

tra
te

gy
 to

 2
02

0.
 

• 
Th

e 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Tr

us
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

C
ab

in
et

 a
nd

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

on
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t f
ro

m
 J

ul
y-

S
ep

te
m

be
r t

hi
s 

ye
ar

. 
 N

ex
t s

te
ps

 
 Th

e 
ke

y 
w

or
k 

st
re

am
s 

fo
r t

he
 C

YP
S

P
 in

 2
00

9-
20

10
 w

ill
 b

e 
• 

To
 e

ns
ur

e 
so

un
d 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Tr

us
t i

s 
dr

iv
en

 b
y 

pa
rtn

er
 c

on
se

ns
us

. 
• 

To
 c

on
si

de
r a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
 o

n 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f L
or

d 
La

m
in

g’
s 

 re
po

rt 
an

d 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t r
es

po
ns

e 
• 

To
 c

on
si

de
r t

he
 re

so
ur

ce
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
• 

To
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ro

gr
am

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g.
 

 
Pa

ul
 C

la
rk

, C
ha

ir 

54



 
27Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
 

 Th
e 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r o
ve

rs
ee

in
g 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
ta

rg
et

s 
of

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
a 

fo
ru

m
 fo

r d
is

cu
ss

in
g 

an
d 

ag
re

ei
ng

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
e 

ke
y 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

Su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
.  

Th
e 

gr
ou

p 
co

ns
is

ts
 o

f r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 fr
om

 J
ob

 C
en

tre
 P

lu
s,

 H
ar

ro
w

 H
er

ita
ge

 T
ru

st
, H

ar
ro

w
 A

ge
nd

a 
21

, H
ar

ro
w

 P
rim

ar
y 

C
ar

e 
Tr

us
t, 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il,

 H
ar

ro
w

 in
 B

us
in

es
s,

 C
ha

m
be

r o
f C

om
m

er
ce

 a
nd

 F
ur

th
er

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
S

ch
oo

ls
 

 A
ct

iv
ity

 in
 2

00
8/

09
 

• 
Th

e 
gr

ou
p 

ov
er

sa
w

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 d

ra
ft 

C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

S
tra

te
gy

, a
 d

ra
ft 

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 a
 re

fre
sh

ed
 T

ou
ris

m
 

S
tra

te
gy

 
• 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 a

nd
 in

pu
t f

ro
m

 G
re

en
er

 H
ar

ro
w

, w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

a 
pl

ac
e 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 p

ol
ic

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
a 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r c
on

su
lta

tio
ns

 fr
om

 
pa

rtn
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il,
 a

nd
 a

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ex

ch
an

ge
 

• 
Id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

ch
am

pi
on

ed
 th

e 
in

cl
us

io
n 

of
 e

ig
ht

 m
ea

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t i

n 
H

ar
ro

w
.  

Th
is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
 g

re
at

er
 

em
ph

as
is

 o
n 

ec
on

om
ic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

 T
he

 g
ro

up
 a

ls
o 

lo
bb

ie
d 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 fo

r t
he

 in
cl

us
io

n 
of

 th
e 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

 in
di

ca
to

r t
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 in

 p
la

ce
, w

hi
ch

 a
im

ed
 to

 
pr

es
er

ve
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
• 

A
t t

he
 s

ta
rt 

of
 2

00
9,

 th
e 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 re
ne

go
tia

te
d 

si
x 

of
 th

e 
ei

gh
t m

ea
su

re
s 

in
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 n

ew
 d

at
a,

 re
de

fin
ed

 d
ef

in
iti

on
s 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
• 

P
ro

vi
de

d 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
vi

ew
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

ed
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f k

ey
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 fo

r H
ar

ro
w

 e
.g

. T
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

, T
he

 C
or

e 
S

tra
te

gy
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k,
 th

e 
dr

af
t C

lim
at

e 
C

ha
ng

e 
S

tra
te

gy
, t

he
 d

ra
ft 

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
ne

w
ed

 T
ou

ris
m

 S
tra

te
gy

 
• 

In
fo

rm
ed

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
of

 th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

12
th

 s
tre

tc
h 

ta
rg

et
 “t

he
 n

um
be

r o
f b

us
in

es
se

s 
(p

re
 s

ta
rts

, n
ew

 a
nd

 e
xi

st
in

g)
 s

up
po

rte
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 M
en

to
rin

g 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e.
  F

or
 2

00
8/

09
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 2

09
 w

as
 e

xc
ee

de
d 

w
ith

 a
n 

ac
tu

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 2
29

. 
• 

In
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
n 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 P
la

n 
fo

r H
ar

ro
w

  
• 

In
pu

tte
d 

to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l f

or
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 B
us

in
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t D
is

tri
ct

 
• 

S
up

po
rte

d 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 P

le
dg

e 
an

d 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 X
ci

te
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 S

liv
er

s 
of

 T
im

e 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 w
or

kl
es

sn
es

s 
 Pl

an
s 

fo
r 2

00
9/

10
 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
 to

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

an
d 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 id
ea

s 
fo

r t
he

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tre

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
• 

C
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f C
lim

at
e 

C
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

ca
rb

on
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 

• 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

ar
ge

ts
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

r p
ro

gr
es

s 
fo

r t
he

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 c

lu
st

er
 o

f n
at

io
na

l i
nd

ic
at

or
s 

• 
C

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 re

co
ve

ry
 p

la
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t i
ni

tia
tiv

es
 

• 
C

on
tri

bu
te

 to
 th

e 
W

es
t L

on
do

n 
W

as
te

 P
la

n 
 Jo

hn
 E

dw
ar

ds
, C

ha
ir 

55



 
28M

O
VI

N
G

 F
O

R
W

AR
D

:  
N

EX
T 

ST
EP

S  
 Th

e 
ne

xt
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

fo
r t

he
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 is

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 o

n 
th

e 
re

fre
sh

ed
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
tra

te
gy

 a
m

bi
tio

ns
.  

 
 Fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
09

, C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 A

re
a 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t (

C
A

A
) w

ill
 re

pl
ac

e 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t (

C
P

A
). 

Th
is

 m
ar

ks
 a

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
ha

ng
e 

to
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t r

eg
im

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

pa
ss

in
g 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t a
nd

 P
ub

lic
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

H
ea

lth
 A

ct
 

(2
00

7)
. C

PA
 fo

cu
se

d 
on

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
 C

A
A

 w
ill

 lo
ok

 a
t t

he
 p

ub
lic

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 a
n 

ar
ea

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 b

y 
co

un
ci

ls
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

pa
rtn

er
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
an

d 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

se
ct

or
s.

 
 Th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ne
w

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 A

re
a 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t h

as
 p

ro
m

pt
ed

 th
e 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 to

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 a

 s
el

f-e
va

lu
at

io
n 

on
 b

ot
h 

w
ha

t w
e 

ar
e 

do
in

g 
w

el
l a

nd
 n

ot
 s

o 
w

el
l a

ga
in

st
 o

ur
 a

m
bi

tio
ns

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
s;

 w
ha

t i
m

pa
ct

 th
e 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 is

 h
av

in
g;

 a
nd

 re
co

gn
is

e 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

s 
ris

ks
 to

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 s

ho
rt 

te
rm

 a
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 a
m

bi
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

S
tra

te
gy

.  
 

 Th
e 

se
lf 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 in
fo

rm
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
fo

r t
he

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 m
ad

e 
up

 o
f a

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 w

or
k 

st
re

am
s 

th
at

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

bo
th

 th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

G
ro

up
 a

nd
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t g
ro

up
s.

  T
he

 s
el

f e
va

lu
at

io
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 o
rg

an
is

ed
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
ch

ap
te

rs
 

of
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 n
ew

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

tra
te

gy
 (2

00
9-

20
20

). 
 

 Th
e 

Se
lf 

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

w
ill 

al
so

 b
e 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Au
di

t C
om

m
is

si
on

 to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f H
ar

ro
w

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 th

e 
A

re
a 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 A
re

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
  

 A
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 w
eb

si
te

 p
ag

e 
is

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 fo
r t

he
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 in

 2
00

9 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
va

rio
us

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
to

 
re

si
de

nt
s 

on
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

.  
Th

e 
w

eb
si

te
 p

ag
e 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
po

in
t o

f a
cc

es
s 

fo
r a

ll 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 re
la

te
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

  T
he

 w
eb

si
te

 
w

ill
 b

e 
la

un
ch

ed
 la

te
r i

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
. 

     

56



 
 
 

Harrow Strategic Partnership Board 
 

Annual General Meeting – 26th May 2009 
 

Report of Harrow Chief Executives 
 
 

1. Introduction 
 
The new Partnership governance arrangements established a new group comprising the Chief 
Executives of the main public service organisations in harrow plus the Chief Executives of 
Harrow Association for Voluntary Service and Harrow in Business.  The role of the Harrow 
Chief Executives is operationally to manage the delivery of the priorities and targets of the 
Partnership as set out in the Sustainable Community Plan and Local Area Agreement.  It does 
this through coordinating and monitoring the work of the five Thematic Management Groups.   
 
2. This Harrow Chief Executives (HCE) group is responsible for: 
 

• taking forward the place shaping agenda; 
• preparing for the introduction of the Comprehensive Area Assessment and ensuring 

that the partnership is working effectively; 
• identifying opportunities for joint working to promote the Partnership’s aims and 

objectives; 
• tackling the big issues facing Harrow by proposing alignment of partner activity to 

address the issues identified; 
• developing an overview of what is working in Harrow and why, and how other work 

streams and projects could benefit from their example; 
• developing a joint planning framework; 
• holding management groups to account for the delivery of the Sustainable Community 

Plan and the Local Area Agreement and providing support, challenge and direction as 
necessary; 

• monitoring and providing support and direction as necessary for the area risk 
assessment; and 

• identifying communication opportunities for the Partnership to increase its public profile. 
 
3. The Group is accountable to the Partnership Board for delivery of the priorities and 
targets of the Harrow Partnership.  Members of the Harrow Chief Executives are also 
accountable to their own organisations.   
 
4. The HCE has met four times since its inception.  This report sets out the issues that the 
group has discussed. 
 
5. Recommendation 
 
That the Board notes the themes discussed by the HCE Group. 
 
6. The HCE has met on four occasions.  The themes running through their agendas have 
included: 
 

Agenda Item 7
Pages 57 to 58

57



• Preparation for the Comprehensive Area Assessment and, as a contribution to ensuring 
that the Audit Commission CAA lead for Harrow is fully informed of partnership activity, 
Annette Furley has been invited to attend meetings whenever she is available.  At the 
meeting in March, Annette gave a presentation on the how she will approach Harrow’s 
CAA and helped develop a timetable for the submission of documents including the self 
evaluation that the Summit has been asked to consider. 

• Performance on the LAA.  Quarterly performance information on an exception basis 
has been presented to the Group on the old LAA including forecasts of the amount of 
reward grant funding that may be earned.  This information is also contained in the HSP 
Annual Report.  The first year outturn for the new LAA will be presented to the next 
meeting on 1st June. 

• JAG.  The opportunities available through joining together the analysis capacity of the 
public sector partners to provide better and more integrated data as well as bespoke 
analyses have been regularly discussed at the Group including accommodation and 
equipment for a dedicated secure room at the Civic Centre.   

• Recession.  The Group has supported the formation of a cross-organisational group to 
identify and implement measures to lessen the impact of the recession on Harrow 
residents and businesses.  The Group receives reports on progress. 

• Sustainable Community Strategy.  The Group oversaw the latter stages of the process 
of refreshing the Strategy.  From amongst the ambitions that the Strategy contains, the 
Group has identified 5 issues for particular attention in 2009/2010 including: 

 
¾ the recession 
¾ environmental sustainability 
¾ community cohesion 
¾ Public Health: a Partnership Approach and 
¾ Public Sector Transformation – working very much more closely together 

 
• Issues relating to the voluntary and community sector including progress with the 

response to the Scrutiny Review and the outcome of complaints made under the 
Compact.   

 
7. Further reports proposing Partnership action as well as providing details of HCE 
meetings will be submitted to each Board meeting. 

58


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Harrow Healthy Living Centre
	5 North West London Collaborative Commissioning Intentions 2009-2014
	6 Harrow Strategic Partnership Annual Report 2008/09
	7 Report of Harrow Chief Executives

